
Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received by the public for free in advance of the meeting 
by any of the following options: 

 A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 during business hours or mailed pursuant 
to a written request and payment of associated mailing fees 

 An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas and/or meeting materials must be 
completed a minimum of one week in advance of the meeting 

 Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website 

 A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD 
Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility 

 

 
  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                 Danny Johnson, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Mary Smith, Vice President  
                      Russell Warren 
               Emery Ross 
                            Roy Phillips 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

August 19, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. 
 

 Mission Statement: The Lake Don Pedro CSD is dedicated to providing our customers with ample  
quantities of high quality water meeting all standards, in a fiscally responsible manner. 

 

AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA A 
maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the 
Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time. Speakers are encouraged to consult District 
Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda 
issues. 
 

         3. PRESENTATION ONLY:  
              a. Presiding Officer’s Report  
              b. General Manager’s Report: 
                   Grant / Study Updates 
         Current District Projects 
                   Operations Updates 
                    Administrative Updates 
 
          4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered   
   separately as determined appropriate by the President  
 

  a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report for the period ending July 31, 2024 including        
  summary of claims paid  
              b. Approval of the Minutes of the following meetings: 
  Regular Meeting of July 15, 2024 

 
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
    a. Presentation / Update Presented by Jesse Franco from Black Water Engineers, Inc. regarding 
        the LDPCSD Intake Pump Station Project & Treatment Plant Modernization Project  
    b. Discussion /Approval of Resolution 2024-xxx Approving and Awarding a Design-Build   
        Contract with Mountain Cascade Inc. in the amount of $3,155,818 for the Raw Water Intake      
        Project and Pump Station Project, etc. 
    c. Discussion / Information Only: Update information regarding the ‘Pedro Fire’ 
      

 6. ADJOURNMENT: 

1



 

 
      

August 19, 2024 
 
Signed addendum to the agreement for the DWR Water Intake Project. The addendum included 
the new maximum amount payable by the state shall not exceed $4,265,962. The project 
construction and construction management will remove and replace approximately 420 linear 
feet of one of the intake pipelines along with the associated 12-inch check and gate valves, pipe 
fittings, and expansion joints. This task will also replace the existing 125-hp submersible pump 
with a 200-hp submersible pump. The electrical components and controls for the system will be 
replaced. Overall, the pipeline will extend by approximately 700LF to reach a depth of 600 feet 
above sea level. Jesse Franco from Black Water Consulting will be here to give a presentation. 
 
Solar: SiteLogiq and SigSolar are not responding for a request for solar at our admin building. 
We have until April 2025 deadline to take advantage of the NEM 2 program. I am looking into 
other solar companies to give us an estimate before the deadline arrives. Engineer designs must 
be completed and submitted to PG&E in this time period as well. 
 
In addition to finding me in my office, I can be reached at the following: 
• District phone – (209) 852-2331 Ext 1 
• E-mail - dave@ldpcsd.org 
 
Grant/Study Updates 

 DWR RAW WATER INTAKE PUMP STATION PROJECT- Project Update: Jesse 
Franco from Black Water to give presentation. 

 USDA / FUNDING OPPORTUNITY – Status: We’ve submitted a project summary for 
the Raw Water Intake to explore the possibility of securing additional funds. 

 DWSRF Treatment Plant Modernization Project –Reviewing document with Black Water 
with some added notes. During the fire we learned about our power grid and where we 
would need generators and improved water flow for firefighting capabilities on Arbolada 
Dr. (Hydropneumatics Station) 

 NBS Water Rate Study – NBS is still working on finalizing the study. I had a phone 
meeting with them Friday August 16th after this report was created. Will give update in 
BOD meeting. 

 Golf Course – There was a phone conference scheduled but has been cancelled. 

 
Operations 

 Critical Project Updates –We will continue with these projects once the summer demand 
decreases. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

2



 Water Distribution System: We have approximately 10 leaks some due to the use of fire 
hydrants and others due to aging infrastructure. The crew has been busy fixing these 
leaks as well as service requests and meter reads. We estimate approximately 200,000 
gallons were used during the Pedro fire. 

 Meter System -I have been researching the need for a new meter system. The existing 
equipment is 20 years old and the drive–by (AMR) is failing. There is also no tech 
support from Itron who owns the AMR. 

 Training – We are working on CPR training for everyone. Between Fires and the number 
of leaks arising, scheduling has been difficult. Randy has been training me at the 
Treatment Plant so that I will be able to operate the plant like the rest of the operators. 
This will enable the crew to stay out in the field without having to pull off to come back 
in to perform Plant duties. This will increase our productivity. 

 Lead Service Line Inventory – State of California wants us to identify homes built before 
1986 and identify the Districts and Customers material used for service lines. Our lead 
worker is working on this project. The goal is to have any lead service lines replaced that 
provide drinking water. This is on the customer side only by the customer. Children 
under 6 and fetuses are at the highest risk. LDPSCD does not have any lead in their 
service lines but we must identify a plan to check the customers’ side by October. Update 
– Randy and I to attend meeting discussing on how to develop and submit a service line 
material inventory to the Division of Drinking Water by October 16, 2024. Tuolumne 
County has 80 homes that were built before 1986 that we will investigate to determine 
the service line type. We are still determining the number of homes in Mariposa County 
that were built before 1986. 

 Repairs- UPDATE: Dump truck is in the shop being repaired. 

 
Administrative 
•  SAFETY MEETINGS MONTHLY – Safe Lifting Tips was completed 
•  Weekly Staff Meetings are ongoing 
 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



 

 
  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                 Danny Johnson, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Mary Smith, Vice President  
                      Russell Warren 
               Emery Ross 
                            Roy Phillips 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

July 15, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. 
 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held a regular 

meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 

Vice President Smith called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

Directors present: Johnson, Smith, Phillips, and Ross 

Directors absent: Warren 

Also present GM D. Savidge 

Also present: Board Secretary: S. Marchesiello 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 The Board received no public comment 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: A Notice of Public Hearing has been published and hearing to be 
 held for the purpose of receiving public input and comment as required for the 
 following revenue collection and budget related items. At the conclusion of the public 
 Hearing, the Board will consider adoption of Resolution approving the various actions. 
 
 a. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Placement of the Availability Billing and                            
 Delinquent Account balances on the Mariposa and Tuolumne County Fiscal Year 2025 Tax 
 Rolls for collection 
 
 Motion: To approve the resolution approving the placement of the availability billing 
 and delinquent account balances on the Mariposa and Tuolumne county fiscal year 
 2025 tax rolls for collection 
 Votes: Carried 4-0 
 First: Johnson  Second: Ross 
 Ayes: Johnson, Ross, Smith, and Phillips 
 Absent: Warren 
 
 

         4. PRESENTATION ONLY:  
              a. Presiding Officer’s Report  
                  None given at this time 
 
              b. General Manager’s Report: 
                   Grant / Study Updates 
         Current District Projects 
                   Operations Updates 
                    Administrative Updates 
                Presented by GM Dave Savidge 
 
        5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered   
   separately as determined appropriate by the President  

12



 

   a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report for the period ending June 30, 2024 including        
        summary of claims paid  
              b. Approval of the Minutes of the following meeting: 
  Regular Meeting of June 17, 2024 
 
  Motion: To approve the consent calendar 
  Votes: Carried 4-0 
  First: Ross  Second: Smith 
  Ayes: Ross, Smith, Johnson, and Phillips 
  Absent: Warren 

 
6. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
    a. Discussion / Information: GM Savidge Providing an Update on LDPCSD Wells  
        No action taken – Information only 
 
    b. Discussion / Information: GM Savidge Providing an Update on LDPCSD Valves and Gauges 
        No action taken – Information only 
 

          c. Discussion / Approval of Resolution 2024-xxx to update the Bank Signature Cards adding             
   Director Roy Phillips 

 
   Motion: To approve the Resolution to update the bank signature cards adding Director  

    Roy Phillips 
   Votes: Carried 4-0 
   First: Ross   Second: Smith 
   Ayes:  Ross, Smith, Johnson, and Phillips 
   Absent: Warren 
 
      
 7. ADJOURNMENT: 1:31 p. m.  
 
  Respectfully submitted by, 
     S. Marchesiello 
     Board Secretary 

13



 

 
 

 

 

To:          Board of Directors 

From:     Dave Savidge  

Date:       August 19, 2024 

Subject:  Raw Water Intake and Pump Station Project  

 

Description: 

The LDPCSD serves approximately 1,500 active connections and a population of 2,714. The District has 

two sources of water supply: surface water from Lake McClure and four hard rock wells. The surface water 

system, Raw Water Intake Pump Station, consists of dual submersible pumps installed at Lake McClure 

within screened steel casings that have a combined capacity of 3,600 gallons per minute (gpm). The 

existing Lake McClure pump station and intake infrastructure, constructed in the late 1960s, have served 

the District for decades but have reached the end of their service life. The pump station building, and its 

electrical equipment urgently require replacement and upgrades mandated by codes. Additionally, the 

intake pipelines and pumps have either failed or deteriorated significantly. 

 

The Raw Water Intake and Pump Station project aims to enhance the current infrastructure and facilities to 

supply raw lake water reliably to the District's water treatment plant. The District obtained approval for a 

Department of Water Resources (DWR) Grant for the Project: DWR Agreement #4600014600 in the 

amount of $3.6 million. The grant comes from the small community drought relief program funded by the 

Budget Act of 2021 (STATS. 2021, CH 240 – 80).   

 

The District hired Black Water Engineering to provide engineering support and grant administration for the 

project. Given the hydraulic complexity of the project involving submerged design and construction, as 

well as the timing constraints associated with the grant funding, the decision was made to pursue a Design-

Build project delivery method to leverage specialized expertise and reduced project scheduling.  Requests 

for Qualifications and Request for Proposals were issued to allow for qualified firms to participate, as well 

as for competitive cost proposals for the project. Mountain Cascade Inc.-Sandis Engineering was selected 

as the most qualified Design Build Entity. Originally the project scope included the replacement of both 

Lake Don Pedro Community 

STAFF REPORT 

14



 

intake pipelines and pumps, and electrical upgrades.  Unfortunately, the cost proposals received for the 

identified scope of work were substantially more than the grant funding amount.     

 

Black Water and District staff notified DWR of the cost proposals received and requested additional 

funding.  DWR recommended the project scope be reduced to meet critical improvements to meet the grant 

funding that was approved. Black Water negotiated with Mountain Cascade on a reduced project scope and 

cost, but the proposed cost was still higher than the grant amount. An additional funding request was 

submitted to DWR in the amount of $600,000 and was approved.  DWR also extended the project deadline 

to June 30, 2025.  

 

The condensed scope of the proposed project includes the engineering, design and construction necessary 

for the replacement of one intake pipeline and one submersible turbine pump for the Raw Water Intake & 

Pump Station to meet the District's capacity requirements, incorporating appropriate valve control and 

surge protections. The project will upgrade the pump station building, providing a modern electrical room 

with appropriate environmental controls and upgraded electrical equipment.  

 

A future item will be presented to the Board of Directors to approve an amendment to the consultant 

agreement with Black Water Engineering for engineering support services during construction, 

construction management and inspections. 

 

Recommendation:  

Resolution approving and awarding a Design-Build Contract to Mountain Cascade, Inc. of Livermore, CA, 

in the amount of $3,155,818, and authorizing the General Manager, or his designee, to execute the Contract 

and approve Change Orders up to the cumulative amount of $370,337, for a total payment amount not to 

exceed $3,526,155.  

 

 

15



Raw Water 
Intake & 
Pump Station
J ES S E  F RA N CO,  P R O J E C T  M A N AG E R

DAV ID SAV ID G E ,  G E N E R A L  M A N AG E R

AUG UST 19 ,  2024

16



Project 
Update

 Project Scope

 Solicitation (Cost Proposal) 

 Funding 

 Recommendation

17



Original 
Project 
Scope 
 Remove, replace, and upgrade the 

existing pump station 
components, including the existing 
pump facilities, check and gate 
valves, pipe fittings, and electrical 
controls for the system (1200gpm 
to 3600 gpm)

 Installation of two high-strength, 
low-alloy steel pipes, each 12 
inches in diameter, inside 30-inch 
casings, approx. 800 ft long, with 
3-intakes for operational flexibility

18



Project Delivery
 Project delivery method selected for the Raw 

Water Intake & Pump Station was Design-Build

 Design-Build allows a Contractor to team with an 
engineering firm to complete a project. 

 Design-Build is selected for projects that have 
scheduling constraints, and/or have unique or 
specialized construction and engineering 
elements  

 Risk is borne by the Design-Build Team

19



Solicitation Results
 Request for Qualifications (RFP)
 Issued on January 23, 2023
 Five (5) Design-Build Teams submitted qualification 

packages on March 10, 2023
 Four (4) Design-Build Teams selected as qualified to 

receive Request for Proposal

 Request for Qualifications (RFP)
 Issued on June 4, 2023
 Two (2) Design-Build Teams submitted Proposals
 Mountain Cascade-Sandis ($5.8M)
 McGuire Hester-Sandis ($20.1M)

 Mountain Cascade-Sandis selected as most qualified
20



Funding
 District received grant from the 

Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
through Small Community Drought Relief 
Program
 $3,665,962

 DWR recommended project scope be 
condensed to include critical project 
components and to be within approved 
grant amount
 Additional $600k requested and approved by 

DWR to cover construction, construction 
management, inspections, contingency, 
materials testing, reporting, permitting, and 
commissioning of condensed project scope. 
Project schedule deadline also extended by 
DWR to June 30, 2025. 

21



Condensed 
Project 
Scope
 Remove and replace one intake pipeline 

and submersible pump, and upgrade the 
existing pump station components, 
including the existing check and gate 
valves, pipe fittings, and electrical controls 
for the system (1500 gpm)

 Upgrade the existing electrical system and 
controls to current standards

 Minor upgrades to existing Pump Station 
building

 Revised Design-Build Contract Amount = 
$3,155,818

22



Condensed 
Project

1. When project estimate initially 
prepared, Lake McClure was at 
low lake levels – conditions were 
expected to remain low
• 2022-2023 Rain events elevated lake 

levels considerable  

2. Material costs have since 
increased substantially since 
original estimate 

3. Electrical improvements needed 
are beyond what was initially 
evaluated

- Pump Station/Electrical Building Remains

- Pump Station Foundation Remains 

- Pipeline – Remove one existing and replace one at extended depth

23



Recommendation
Resolution approving and awarding a Design-Build Contract to Mountain Cascade, Inc. of 
Livermore, CA, in the amount of $3,155,818, and authorizing the General Manager, or his 
designee, to execute the Contract and approve Change Orders up to the cumulative 
amount of $370,337, for a total payment amount not to exceed $3,526,155. 

24



Thank you
QUESTIONS?

25



 

Page 1 of 83  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 

DESIGN / BUILD 
CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

  

This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this ____day of August, 2024 (“Effective Date of the 
Agreement”) by and between the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (“Owner” or “District”) and 
Mountain Cascade Inc. – Sandis Engineering (“DB Entity”).  
  

WHEREAS, Owner intends to design and construct a project known as Raw Water Intake & Pump 
Station (“Project”), which project consists of the design and construction of infrastructure necessary to 
convey surface water from Lake McClure to the customers of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services 
District (“LDPCSD”) via the District’s water distribution system; and  
    

WHEREAS, Owner anticipates that the Project will be completed no later than June 2025; and   
 
WHEREAS, Owner determined that its goals for the Project would be best‐served by using a process 

whereby Owner and DB Entity will implement the Project through Design and Build project delivery 
method, during which DB Entity will complete the design and construction of the Project as defined by the 
Design‐Build Phase; and  
    

WHEREAS, after conducting a design/build procurement process, Owner awarded this Agreement 
to DB Entity.  
 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, Owner and DB Entity hereby 
agree as follows:  

 
Section 1 
The Work 

  
1.1. Final Design and Construction.  DB Entity will perform the Design‐Build Phase in accordance with the 

General Conditions and Contract Documents.  
 

1.2. Future Considerations: The planned improvements will accommodate future expansion of intake 
capacity, including an additional intake pipeline and pump, as well as future automation and water 
quality monitoring features available through a new SCADA system.  

 
1.3. Design Schedule: The design schedule will be compressed and expedited to facilitate the procurement 

of extended lead items and to allow for the demolition and construction of water‐side system 
components, avoiding the summer lake recreation period. 
 
 

 Section 2  
The Project  

  
2.1.  The Owner has developed the Project in order to convey surface water from Lake McClure to 

customers of the LDPCSD water distribution system, providing much needed supply for LDPCSD 
customers who have seen their groundwater supplies severely reduced in recent years. Project will 
deliver up to 1,800 gallons per minute (gpm) of surface water directly to the District’s water distribution 

26



 

 
Page 2 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

system, which will then be conveyed to LDPCSD customers. The project is generally referred to as the 
Raw Water Intake & Pump Station (the “Project”).  
 
2.1.1. General Description: The Lake Don Pedro Community Service District's Lake McClure Raw 
Water Pump Station and Intake project aims to enhance the current infrastructure and facilities to 
supply raw lake water to the District's water treatment plant. The existing Lake McClure pump station 
and intake infrastructure, constructed in the late 1960s, have served the District for decades but have 
reached the end of their service life. The pump station building, and its electrical equipment urgently 
require replacement and upgrades mandated by codes. Additionally, the intake pipelines and pumps 
have either failed or deteriorated significantly. Presently, the District operates the pump station under 
emergency procedures, utilizing a floating barge‐mounted pump to draw water from the lake and 
transfer it to an intermediate 60,000‐gallon storage tank. Adjacent to the existing electrical building are 
two vertical turbine transfer pumps, which pump water from the storage tank to the District's water 
treatment plant storage tank when activated. These emergency procedures demand significant District 
personnel time and effort, especially during peak summer usage. The project will upgrade the pump 
station building, providing a modern electrical room with appropriate environmental controls and 
state‐of‐the‐art electrical equipment. The intake pipelines will be replaced with a single intake pipeline 
and a new submersible turbine to meet the District's capacity requirements, incorporating appropriate 
valve control and surge protections.  
 
2.2.1. Planning and Design: The permit services and scope, terms and conditions are limited to the 
California Department of Fish and Game, 401 Water Quality Permit Scope, and Biological Services, as 
further described on Exhibit 10. 

 
2.3.1. Pump Station Building: The existing pump station building, approximately 13 feet by 15 feet in 
plan, will remain but undergo improvements including interior and exterior painting, roof and roof 
structure replacement, passive and active ventilation, dedicated HVAC system, and LED ambient 
lighting. Electrical equipment will be replaced and upgraded, consisting of a new main electrical switch, 
a new Motor Control Center with pump soft starter, and a new 120 Volt distribution panel. These 
improvements to the pump station building and electrical equipment will be phased during 
construction due to the extended lead time required for medium voltage electrical and motor control 
panels.  

 
2.4.1. Intake Pipeline and Pump: The existing intakes will be completely demolished and removed to 
accommodate the new intake pipeline. The one existing submersible turbine will be salvaged for 
potential rebuilding and future reuse. The new intake will be a single HDPE pipeline, with the 
submersible turbine pump mounted at an elevation of 600 feet (approximately 260 feet below full pool 
elevation). The new intake system will draw water directly through the pump intake without using 
intake screens at various elevations. The pump will be mounted on a steel frame approximately five (5) 
feet above the lakebed to reduce the risk of drawing highly turbid water into the system. It is 
acknowledged that future maintenance of the pump will necessitate deep water technical diving 
capabilities, and if feasible, provisions for pipe‐to‐pump connection and pump mounting will be 
considered.  

 
2.5.1. Electrical System: The existing electrical switch and motor control center will be demolished 
and replaced with modern and code‐compliant equipment. The existing 12‐kV service drop, and 480 V 
transformers will be retained and reused. Coordination and scheduling with PG&E will be required for 
the service connection between the transformer and the new switch. The existing VFD panels for the 

27



 

 
Page 3 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

vertical turbine transfer pumps will remain functional but will only be used during emergency 
procedures as previously mentioned.  

 

 The existing Pacific Gas & Electrical (PG&E) transformer supplies three‐phase, three wire power 
feed for the existing pump system.  This meets the code but is no longer the standard that the 
switchgear required for this project is now built, which is three‐phase, four wire transformer 
power feed.  The Electrical System service is based on the use of current commercially available 
switchgear, utilizing a three‐phase four wire Wye Board, which meets the National Electrical 
Code (NEC).  Should a new transformer or custom‐made switchgear or other resolution be 
required, Design‐Build shall be entitled to a Change Order providing adjustment to the Contract 
Price and Contract Time for rectifying this conflict. 
 

2.6.1. SCADA System: The existing pump station equipment includes a SCADA system for monitoring 
a minimum number of electrical and operational parameters. The project will transition from this 
SCADA system to the new electrical equipment for monitoring and basic operations, without providing 
the expanded suite of capabilities available with modern SCADA equipment. 

 

2.7.1. Project Elements: The proposed project shall include, the following: 
 

 Demolition and removal of the two existing lake intake pipelines (well casing & carrier pipe) and 
one (1) existing submersible turbine pump, nominally 150‐hp.   

 Demolition and removal of existing 12‐inch and 14‐inch steel at‐grade or direct bury pipelines 
(2), approximately 300 feet.   

 Demolition and removal of existing 12‐inch swing check, butterfly and surge valves.  

 12‐inch HDPE marine pipeline, approximately 700 feet in length.  

 12‐inch steel at‐grade or direct bury pipeline, approximately 200 feet in length.  

 12‐inch surge relief, swing check, and butterfly valves.  

 Air/vacuum release valves (2)  

 8‐inch magnetic flow meter, final size to be determined based on min and max system flow 
rates.  

 Connection to 14‐inch pipeline to water treatment plant.  

 600‐amp, 480 volt, 3‐phase main switch panel  

 480 volt, 3‐phase motor control center 

 480 volt, 3‐phase, 250‐hp pump soft starter  

 120 volt, 1‐phase, 100‐amp distribution panel  

 250‐HP submersible turbine pump with design point of 1,500 gpm @ 540 feet of total dynamic 
head  

 Refeed electrical: 480 volt, 3‐phase for existing transfer pumps and barge pumps VFD (3 total)  

 Electrical building improvement: new roof and selective replacement of roof structure  

 Electrical building improvement: 3‐ton mini split HVAC, roof vent fan, and door louver  

 Electrical building improvement: led lighting  

 Electrical building improvement: painting interior and exterior  

 Site Security fence and vehicular access gate  

 Throughout the improvement project, comprehensive construction period inspections, testing, 
and commissioning will be conducted to validate the performance of both the pump and 
pipeline. The design‐build project team anticipates expediting the design phase to 
accommodate the extensive lead times associated with 480 volt, 3‐phase electrical equipment. 

   

28



 

 
Page 4 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Section 3  
Contract Time  

  
3.1. Date of Commencement  

DB Entity shall commence the Design‐Build Phase Services upon DB Entity’s receipt of Owner’s Notice 

to Proceed (“NTP with Final Design and Construction Services”).  

 

3.2. Contract Time for Final Design and Construction Services  
Scheduled Substantial Completion Date.  DB Entity shall substantially complete the Work no later 
than June 30, 2025 (“Scheduled Substantial Completion Date”), subject to adjustment in accordance 
with the General Conditions.  
 
Scheduled Final Acceptance Date.  DB Entity shall achieve Final Acceptance no later than sixty (60) 
days from Substantial Completion (“Scheduled Final Acceptance Date”), subject to adjustment in 
accordance with the General Conditions.  

  
3.3. Time of the Essence.  The time limits for Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance are of the 

essence of the Contract.  
  
3.4. Delay Liquidated Damages.  

3.4.1. Calculation of Delay Liquidated Damages.  It is hereby understood and agreed that it is and 
will be difficult and/or impossible to ascertain and determine the actual damage that Owner will 
sustain in the event of and by reason of DB Entity’s delay; therefore, DB Entity agrees that it shall pay 
to Owner the sum of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000) per day as liquidated damages for each and 
every following day’s delay beyond the Substantial Completion Date that Substantial Completion is 
not achieved. 

 
3.4.2. Liquidated Damages Not Penalty.  It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount is not 
a penalty, but is a reasonable estimate of the damages that Owner will incur.  In the event any 
portion of the liquidated damages is not paid to Owner, Owner may deduct that amount from any 
money due or that may become due the DB Entity under this Agreement, Owner may seek recovery 
of Liquidated Damages from the DB Entity’s Performance Bond Surety and/or Owner may seek 
recovery of Liquidated Damages from the DB Entity or the Performance Bond Surety without having 
exhausted remedies against the other. 
 

 
   

29



 

 
Page 5 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Section 4  
Compensation and Contract Price  

  
4.1. Contract Price.  

4.1.1. Owner shall pay DB Entity in accordance with the General Conditions a contract price in the 
amount of three million, one hundred fifty‐five thousand, eight hundred and eighteen DOLLARS 
($3,155,818) (the “Contract Price”).  The Contract Price is subject to adjustments made in accordance 
with Article 9 of the General Conditions. 

 
4.1.2. The Contract Price is deemed to include but not be limited to all labor, materials, equipment, 
supplies, and all sales, consumer, use, employment‐related and other taxes mandated by applicable 
Laws and Regulations or that result from the performance of the Work. 
 

4.1.3. The Contract price is based on the cost proposal submitted by the DB Entity, summarized 
below.   
 

Planning and Design: 

Engineering and Design Costs  $342,160.00

Engineering Support During Construction  $227,748.00

Site Surveys, Borings, etc.  $39,620.00

Permitting  $45,000.00

Geotechnical  $21,530.00

Other (Specify): QSP Services  $10,850.00

Subtotal $686,908.00

 

Element 1 ‐ Pump Station: 

Sheeting and Shoring (not in scope)  N/A

Pump Station Modifications  $145,567.00

Connection to Reservoir Tank (if needed)  $0.00

Site Work   $36,169.00

Demolition  $98,216.00

Pumps  $349,038.00

Piping and Mechanical  $174,536.00

HVAC (if needed)  $38,714.00

Surge Facilities   

Electrical & Instrumentation  $861,453.00

Subtotal $1,703,693.00

 

Element 2 – Intake and Pipelines: 

Permitting requirements (turbidity curtains, etc.)   $11,541.00

Pipeline footings/anchoring  $35,775.00

Pipelines installed with Appurtenances  $100,305.00

Intakes installed  $52,538.00

Intake footings/anchoring  $64,150.00

Subtotal $264,309.00

30



 

 
Page 6 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 

Element 6 ‐ SCADA: 

Integration  $27,091.00

Subtotal $27,091.00

  

Start‐up Commissioning: 

Pre‐Start‐up Inspection  $7,178.00

Commissioning and Acceptance Testing  $5,419.00

Subtotal $12,597.00

 

Other Direct and Indirect Costs: 

Site Preparation and Mobilization  $166,339.00

Clearing and Grubbing  $6,224.00

Spare Parts  $15,175.00

Landscaping/Restoration  $5,378.00

Administrative  $197,950.00

Required Design‐Build Period Insurance  $37,927.00

Design and Construction Document Management 
Software 

$11,921.00

Record Drawings  $7,486.00

Other (Specify):   $12,820.00

Subtotal $461,220.00

 

TOTAL PROPOSED FIXED DESIGN‐BUILD PRICE  $3,155,818.00
 

 

   

31



 

 
Page 7 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Section 5  
Payment Procedures  

  

5.1. Submittal and Processing of Payments.  

5.1.1. DB Entity shall submit, and Owner will process, Applications for Payment in accordance with 

Article 13 of the General Conditions. 

 

5.1.2. All Applications for Payment shall reference Owner’s contract number and shall follow the 

same format as shown on the Application for Payment provided in the Contract Documents. 

 

5.1.3. Failure of DB Entity to follow the instructions set forth in the Contract Documents regarding a 

proper Application for Payment and acceptable services may result in an unavoidable delay in 

payment by Owner. 

 

5.1.4. Any early payment discount offered by DB Entity shall be clearly indicated on the Application 

for Payment), including the percentage of the discount and the time period for which the discount is 

valid. Owner reserves the option to accept such early payment discounts. 

 

5.1.5. DB Entity shall comply with the requirements in Section 9 of Technical Requirements relating 

to Funding Requirements.   

 

5.2.  Progress Payments and Retention  

5.2.1. Payments for Work Performed after the Effective Date of the Contract.  For Work performed 

after the Effective Date of the Contract, Owner shall make progress payments within the time set 

forth in Section 5.4 below after Owner’s receipt of each properly submitted and accurate Application 

for Payment submitted in accordance with Paragraph 13.02 of the General Conditions.   All such 

payments will be measured by the Progress Payment Schedule, pursuant to Paragraph 13.01 of the 

General Conditions, and shall reflect the total of payments previously made and amounts properly 

withheld as retainage, as set forth below, and under the Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions. 

Work completed as estimated shall be an estimate only and no inaccuracy or error in said estimate 

shall release DB Entity or any Surety from such work or from enforcing each and every provision of 

the Contract Documents. 

1. Progress payments will be in an amount equal to ninety five percent (95%) of Work 
completed (with the balance as retention), and at the option of Owner, Owner may pay an 
amount equal to ninety five percent (95%) of materials and equipment not incorporated in 
the Work in place but delivered and suitably stored on Site, less in each case the aggregate 
of payments previously made.  In no event shall payments for materials and equipment 
stored exceed ninety five percent (95%) of the value of the related cost for the specific item 
of work in place shown in the progress payment schedule regardless of the stated value of 
the materials or equipment.  Owner may, at its sole option, pay an amount equal to ninety 
five percent (95%) of materials and equipment not incorporated in the work stored offsite 
if stored in a manner acceptable to Owner, as stated above for on‐site stored materials.  
When payment to DB Entity is made for stored materials and equipment, DB Entity shall 
submit invoices marked paid by the supplier with the next month’s request for payment to 
document that DB Entity has paid for said materials and equipment or the previously paid 

32



 

 
Page 8 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

amount for stored materials shall be deducted from any remaining payment(s) or retainage 
for any stored materials not so properly documented.  

  
2. The remaining five percent (5%) of such amounts shall be held as the Retention Amount 

and shall be released in accordance with Public Contract Code section 7107.  If all of the 
necessary information is properly submitted, undisputed and accurate (including the 
progress payment schedule and certified payrolls), Owner shall approve the Progress 
Payment in accordance with Public Contract Code section 20104.50.  

  
5.2.2. Waiver and Release upon Payment. Each Progress Payment shall be conditioned upon DB 

Entity providing to Owner with the corresponding Application for Payment a conditional waiver and 

release for payment upon progress payment from the DB Entity and each of its subcontractors and 

materials suppliers that have contracts with DB Entity that exceed $250,000 in the form required by 

Civil Code Section 8132, covering all sums requested in such Application for Payment , and an 

unconditional waiver and release for progress payment from each party, in the form required by Civil 

Code Section 8134, covering sums disbursed pursuant to the most recently preceding Application for 

Payment .  Failure to provide either a condition waiver and release, or unconditional waiver and 

release shall result in the subject sums being in dispute, and thus withheld from payment.  

    
5.2.3. Option for Escrow or Securities in Lieu of Retention. Pursuant to the requirements of Public 

Contract Code Section 22300, upon DB Entity’s request within ten (10) days of execution of this 

Agreement, Owner will make payment to   DB Entity of any earned retention funds withheld from 

payments under this Agreement if DB Entity deposits with Owner or in escrow with a California or 

federally chartered bank acceptable to Owner, securities eligible for the investment pursuant to 

Government Code Section 16430 or bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit. 

1. Conditions upon such deposit include the following:  
(a) DB Entity shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for retention funds 

withheld and shall receive any interest thereon.  
(b) All expenses relating to the substitution of securities under said Section 22300 and 

under this Article 5.2, including, but not limited to Owner’s overhead and 
administrative expenses, and expenses of escrow agent shall be the responsibility of 
the DB Entity.  

(c) If DB Entity shall choose to enter into an escrow agreement, such agreement shall be in 
the form as set forth in Public Contract Code section 22300(f) and which shall allow for 
the conversion to cash to provide funds to meet defaults by the DB Entity including, but 
not limited to, termination of the DB Entity’s control over the work, stop notices filed 
pursuant to law, assessment of liquidated damages or amount to be kept or retained 
under the provisions of the Contract Documents.  

(d) Securities, if any, shall be returned to DB Entity only upon satisfactory completion of 
the Agreement.  

 
2. To minimize the expense caused by such substitution of securities, DB Entity shall, prior to 

or at the time DB Entity requests to substitute security, deposit sufficient security to cover 
the entire amount to be then withheld and to be withheld under the General Conditions of 
this Agreement.  Should the value of such substituted security at any time fall below the 
amount for which it was substituted, or any other amount which Owner determines to 
withhold, DB Entity shall immediately, and at DB Entity’s expense, deposit additional 

33



 

 
Page 9 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

security qualifying under said Section 22300 until the total security deposited is no less 
than equivalent to the amount subject to withholding under the Agreement.  

  
3. In the alternative, under Section 22300, DB Entity, at its own expense, may request Owner 

to make payment of earned retention funds directly to the escrow agent.  Also, at the 
expense of DB Entity, DB Entity may direct investment of the payments into securities, and 
DB Entity shall receive the interest earned on the investment upon the same conditions as 
shown in this Agreement for securities deposited by DB Entity.  Upon satisfactory 
completion of the Agreement, DB Entity shall receive from the escrow agent all securities, 
interest and payments received by the escrow agent from Owner, pursuant to the terms of 
Section 22300.  
  

4. If any provision of this Article 5.2 shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable, then, 
notwithstanding, this Article 5.2 shall remain in full force and effect, and such provision 
shall be deemed stricken.  

  

5.3. Final Payment.  Upon Final Acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.08 of the 

General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as provided in said 

Paragraph 13.08.  DB Entity shall not be entitled to payment for non‐conforming work performed, so 

long as any lawful or proper direction concerning that non‐conforming work, or any portion thereof 

given by Owner lacks correction by DB Entity.  Owner may withhold from the Progress Payments one 

hundred fifty percent (150%) of the estimated value of any amount in dispute between Owner and 

DB Entity. This provision shall also apply in the event that a portion of non‐complying Work may 

impact other completed Work, resulting in a need to reconstruct or rework related Work.  Owner 

shall not unreasonably withhold payment for unrelated and uninvolved Work in the event of dispute 

over non‐complying Work without entering into negotiations to arrive at settlement of said conflict, 

unless withholding pursuant to a Stop Payment Notice.  

 

5.4. Date of Payment.  It is the policy of Owner that payment for all goods and services shall be made in a 

timely manner and that interest payments are made on late payments.  Funding and disbursement of 

payments for the project is subject to review and approval by the Department of Water Resources 

(DWR).  Review and approval of invoices and requests for payment may take up to six (6) weeks by 

the District and DWR. As such, the time at which payment shall be due from Owner shall be forty‐five 

days (45) days from receipt of a proper invoice (i.e., Application for Payment) and acceptance of 

services, based upon satisfaction of the conditions as detailed in the contract, as well as satisfaction 

of DWR’s conditions.  In some cases, payment may take up to sixty days (60) to be issued depending 

upon DWR approval.    

 

   

34



 

 
Page 10 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 Section 6 

DB Entity’s Representations  
  

6.1. Representations. DB Entity shall be deemed to have made the following representations with its 

entering of this Agreement:  

6.1.1. DB Entity has examined, carefully studied, and thoroughly understands the Contract 

Documents and the Reference Documents. 

 

6.1.2. DB Entity has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, 

and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work covered by the 

Contract. 

 

6.1.3. DB Entity is familiar with and is satisfied to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, 

progress, and performance of the Work covered by the Contract. 

 

6.1.4. DB Entity is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the 

Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

 

6.1.5. DB Entity has correlated the Contract Documents with the information known to DB Entity, 

information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the 

Contract Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and 

data. 

 

6.1.6. DB Entity has given Owner written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or discrepancies 

that DB Entity has discovered in the Contract Documents before executing this Agreement and the 

written resolution thereof by Owner is acceptable to DB Entity. 

 

6.1.7. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 

terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work covered by the Contract. 

 

6.1.8. DB Entity shall be bound by and shall perform its obligations in full compliance with the 

Contract Documents. 

 

6.1.9. DB Entity, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and act as an independent 

contractor.  DB Entity understands and agrees that he/she and all of his/her employees shall not be 

considered officers, employees, agents, partner, or joint venture of Owner, and are not entitled to 

benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of Owner and/or to which Owner’s 

employees are normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation, 

Worker’s Compensation or eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 

(PERS) as an employee of Owner and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Owner for 

employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS and other post‐employment 

benefits.  DB Entity shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local taxes or 

contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

DB Entity’s employees.  DB Entity shall be liable for its own actions, including its negligence or gross 

negligence, and shall be liable for the acts, omissions, or errors of its agents or employees. 

35



 

 
Page 11 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 

6.1.10. DB Entity shall perform its obligations under this Agreement using its best professional skill 

and judgment, acting with due care and in accordance with the standard of care applicable to the 

Work and Services to be provided by DB Entity, the covenants, terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, and all applicable laws, codes, rules and regulations of the State of California and all 

other federal, state, and local jurisdictions having authority.  DB Entity represents and warrants that it 

is fully experienced in projects of the nature and scope of Work, and that it is properly qualified, 

licensed and equipped to supply and perform the Work.  The Work completed herein must meet the 

approval of Owner and shall be subject to Owner’s general right of inspection and supervision to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof. 

 

6.1.11. DB Entity agrees that all technologies, formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, 

ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, 

or submitted to Owner and/or used in connection with this Agreement, shall either be the property 

of DB Entity, or DB Entity shall have all necessary rights to use such formulae, procedures, processes, 

methods, writings, ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, teleplays and video productions and to 

provide the same and derivative works thereof to Owner in connection with this Agreement, and 

shall not otherwise be copied in whole or in part from any other source. 

 

6.1.12. Except with respect to design pre‐check documents and associated works and other third 

party intellectual property used by DB Entity on an authorized basis, all drawings, specifications, 

calculations, data, notes and other materials and documents, including electronic data (other than 

System performance data provided during operation, which shall not be deemed “Work Product”) 

furnished by DB Entity to Owner under this Agreement (“Work Product”) shall be and remain the 

property of Owner provided that Owner has fully performed its payment obligation as set forth in 

Section 5 of this Agreement.  DB Entity, or the author of such works, if other than DB Entity, will 

retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including copyrights in the Work Product.  

Upon Final Completion, DB Entity will grant Owner, and its successors and assigns, a perpetual, non‐

transferable royalty‐free license to use the Work Product for the purposes of repair, maintenance, 

renovation, modernization, and all other purposes related to the Project, including, without 

limitation, additions, alignments, or other development on the Site. 

 

   

36



 

 
Page 12 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Section 7 

Contract Documents  
  

7.1. Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist of the following:  
  

1. This Agreement, including all of the Exhibits;  
2. The General Conditions;  
3. Technical Requirements;  
4. The following, which shall be designated, completed, delivered, prepared, or issued after the 

Effective Date of the Agreement and are not attached hereto:  
(i) Any and all written amendments, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and Field Orders 

amending, modifying, or supplementing the Contract Documents.  
(ii) The Final Drawings and Specifications, which shall be developed, submitted and acted upon 

pursuant to Paragraph 6.17 of the General Conditions.  
 
7.2. Amending the Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or 

supplemented as provided in Article 8 hereof with respect to the Contract Price Proposal, and as 
provided in Paragraph 3.04.A of the General Conditions for any other amendment, modification or 
supplementation.  
  

7.3. Order of Precedence of the Contract Documents.  The following order of precedence shall apply in 
the case of direct, irresolvable conflicts between or among Contract Documents:  

 
1. Written amendments signed by the Parties (other than the Contract Price Proposal) with those of 

a later date taking precedence; 
2. Work Change Directives, Change Orders, and Field Orders with those of a later date taking 

precedence; 
3. The Final Drawings and Specifications;  
4. This Agreement, including all Exhibits;  
5. The General Conditions; 
6. Technical Requirements. 

 
   

37



 

 
Page 13 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Section 8  
Miscellaneous  

   

8.1. Defined Terms.  Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General 

Conditions.  

  

8.2. Exhibits.  The following exhibits (“Exhibits”) are specifically made part of, and incorporated by 

reference into, this Agreement:  

Exhibit 1   General Conditions  
Exhibit 2   Technical Requirements  
Exhibit 3   Designated Proposal Forms (as applicable)  
Exhibit 4   Prevailing Wage Certification   
Exhibit 5   Worker’s Compensation Certification   
Exhibit 6   Asbestos and Other Hazardous Materials Certification  
Exhibit 7   Performance Bonds  
Exhibit 8   Labor and Materials Payment Bond   
Exhibit 9   Insurance Requirements  
Exhibit 10   Reserved for forms that will be used after the Effective Date of the Agreement, 

during the administration of the Contract.  
Exhibit 11   RFP Addendum  
Exhibit 12   Negotiated Items and Grant Requirements  

  
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and DB Entity have signed this Agreement in duplicate.  
One counterpart each has been delivered to Owner and DB Entity.  
  
OWNER:                DB ENTITY:  
  
Lake Don Pedro Community Services District       ________________________________ 

(Name of DB Entity)  
  
  
_____________________________________      ________________________________ 
(Signature)               (Signature)  
  
  
_____________________________________      ________________________________ 
(Printed Name)              (Printed Name)  
  
______________________________________      ________________________________ 
(Title)                (Title)  
  
_____________________________________      ________________________________ 
Date:                   Date:      
 
 
 
 

38



 

 
Page 14 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________________      ________________________________ 
By:                     Date:      
  
Approved as to form:  
  
______________________________________      ________________________________ 
By:                   Date:      
  
 
Information regarding Design‐Builder:  

Proper Name:   

Employer Identification and/or 
Social Security Number1: 

 

License No.:   

 Address:   

   

   

Telephone:   

Facsimile:   

E‐Mail:   

 
1 NOTE:  Section 6041 of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. 6041) and Section 1.6041‐1 of Title 26 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations (26   C.F.R. 1.6041‐1) requires the recipients of $600.00 or more to furnish their 
taxpayer information to the payer. In order to comply with these requirements, Owner requires the Design‐
Builder to furnish the information requested in this section.  
 
 Type of Business Entity:  
  
 ____ Individual  
  
 ____ Sole Proprietorship  
  
 ____ Partnership  
  
 ____ Limited Partnership  
  
 ____ Corporation, State: ___________    
  
 ____ Limited Liability Company  
  
____ Other: ____________________________     
 

39



 

 
Page 15 of 15  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 *Important Note: Labor Code §1771.1(a) provides that “A contractor or subcontractor shall not be 
qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public 
Contract Code or engage in the performance of any contract for public work, as defined in this chapter, 
unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. It 
is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 
7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, 
provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 at the time the 
contract is awarded.” Go to https://apps.dir.ca.gov/ecpr/DAS/AltLogin for more information and to 
register. This project is subject to monitoring by the Department of Industrial Relations. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



 

Page 1 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE 
CONTRACT BETWEEN OWNER AND DB ENTITY 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

ARTICLE  1 – DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY ................................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE  2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS ................................................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE  3 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:   INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE .............................................................. 8 

ARTICLE  4 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS; HAZARDOUS 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS ....................................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE  5 – BONDS AND INSURANCE ......................................................................................................... 1314 

ARTICLE  6 – DB ENTITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES ............................................................................................... 1718 

ARTICLE  7 – OTHER CONSTRUCTION .............................................................................................................. 31 

ARTICLE  8 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................................................... 3233 

ARTICLE  9 – CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS................................................................................................ 34 

ARTICLE  10 – COST OF THE WORK; CASH ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK ................................................ 36 

ARTICLE  11 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIME(S) ............................................. 39 

ARTICLE  12 – TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

 ..................................................................................................................................................................... 4142 

ARTICLE  13 – PAYMENTS TO DB ENTITY AND COMPLETION ...................................................................... 4445 

ARTICLE  14 – SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION ........................................................................ 4950 

ARTICLE  15 – CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION ..................................................................................... 5153 

ARTICLE  16 – MISCELLANEOUS ................................................................................................................... 5455 

 

 

   

41



 

 
Page 2 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE 
CONTRACT BETWEEN OWNER AND DB ENTITY  

  

ARTICLE  1 – DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY  
  
1.01. Defined Terms  
  

A. Wherever used in the Contract Documents and printed with initial capital letters, the following 
terms have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.  In 
addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Contract Documents 
include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.  

  
1. Addenda: Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Proposals which clarify, 

correct or change the Request for Proposals or the Contract Documents.  
  

2. Agreement: The written instrument which is evidence of the agreement between Owner and 
DB Entity covering the Work.  
  

3. Application for Payment: The form which is to be used by DB Entity in requesting progress or 
final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is 
required by the Contract Documents.  
  

4. Asbestos: Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is 
releasing asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United 
States Occupational Safety and Health Administration.  

  
5. Bonds: Performance and payment bonds and other instruments of security.  

  
6. Change Order: A written order which, when signed by Owner, authorizes an addition, deletion 

or revision in the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time(s), issued 
on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement.  
  

7. District: Another name for “Owner” that may be used in Technical Requirements. See definition 
for “Owner.”  District or Owner may be used interchangeably throughout the Contract 
Documents.  
  

8. Construction: The part of the Work that is the result of performing or furnishing of labor, the 
furnishing and incorporating of materials and equipment into the Work and the furnishing of 
services (other than Design Professional Services) and documents, all as required by the 
Contract Documents.  

  
9. Construction Sub‐agreement: A written agreement between DB Entity and a construction 

Subcontractor for provision of Construction. 
 

42



 

 
Page 3 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

10. Contract: The entire and integrated written agreement between Owner and DB Entity 
concerning the Work.  The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, whether written or oral.  

  
11. Contract Documents: Those items so designated in the Agreement.  Only printed or hard copies 

of the items listed in the Agreement are Contract Documents.  
  
12. Contract Price: The moneys payable by Owner to DB Entity for completion of the Work in 

accordance with Article 4 of the Agreement.  
  
13. Contract Time(s): The Scheduled Substantial Completion Date and Scheduled Final Acceptance 

Date.  
  

14. Contractor: Another name for “DB Entity” that may be used in Technical Requirements. See 
definition for “DB Entity.”  Contractor and DB Entity may be used interchangeably throughout 
Contract Documents.  
  

15. DB‐Related Entity: DB Entity, Design Sub‐consultants, Subcontractors, Suppliers, and anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be legally or contractually responsible.  
  

16. Delay Liquidated Damages:   Those liquidated damages set forth in Section 3.4 of the 
Agreement.  
  

17. DB Entity: The individual or entity with whom Owner has entered into the Agreement. There 
may be instances in Technical Requirements where the DB Entity is referred to as “Contractor.”  
  

18. Design Professional Services: That part of the Work comprised of services relating to the 
preparation of Drawings, Specifications, and other design submittals specified by the Contract 
Documents and required to be performed by licensed design professionals, as well as other 
services provided by or for licensed design professionals as part of the Work.  
  

19. Design Sub‐agreement: A written agreement between DB Entity and a Design Sub‐consultant 
for provision of Design Professional Services.  
  

20. Design Sub‐consultant: A qualified, licensed design professional, eligible to provide professional 
engineering, architectural and/or land surveying services in California, who is not an employee 
of DB Entity, but is retained by DB Entity to furnish design services on the Project through a 
Design Sub‐agreement. 
 

21. Drawings: Consists of drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules and other data which show 
the scope, extent, and character of the Work.  
  

22. Effective Date of the Agreement: The date that the Contract is executed by both Owner and DB 
Entity.  

  
23. Field Order: A written order issued by Owner which orders minor changes in the Work, but 

which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Time(s).  
  

43



 

 
Page 4 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

24. Final Acceptance:  The written notice from Owner to DB Entity pursuant to Paragraph 13.08 of 
the General Conditions that Owner is satisfied that the Work has been completed and DB 
Entity’s other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled.  
  

25. Final Drawings and Specifications:  Those Drawings and Specifications that will be approved by 
Owner and will become Contract Documents.  
  

26. General Conditions: The General Conditions of the Contract between Owner and DB Entity 
included as part of the Contract Documents.  
  

27. Hazardous Environmental Condition: The presence at the Site of Hazardous Materials in such 
quantities or circumstances that may present an imminent or substantial danger to persons or 
property exposed thereto on connection with the Work.  
  

28. Hazardous Materials: Collectively, Asbestos, Hazardous Waste, PCB’s, Petroleum Products, 
Radioactive Materials and other materials, waste, substances and chemicals deemed to be 
hazardous under applicable Laws or Regulations.  
  

29. Hazardous Waste: The term Hazardous Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section 
25117 of the California Health and Safety Code as amended from time to time.  
  

30. Laws and/or Regulations: Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and 
orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities and courts having jurisdiction.  
  

31. Liens:  Charges, security interests or encumbrances upon real property or personal property.  
  

32. Milestone: Completion date(s), if any, specified as “Milestones” in Article 6 of the Agreement 
and relating to an intermediate completion date or time prior to Substantial Completion of all 
the Work. 
 

33. Notice to Proceed (“NTP”): A written notice given by Owner to DB Entity, which notice is the 
date on which the Contract Time(s) will commence to run and is the date on which DB Entity 
shall start to perform the Work.  
  

34. Owner: District. There may be instances in Technical Requirements where the Owner is 
referred to as “District.”  
  

35. Owner’s Advisor: Black Water Consulting Engineers, Inc.  
  

36. indemnified Parties: Owner and all of its representatives, appointed and elected officials, 
officers, employees,.  
  

37. Partial Utilization: Use by Owner of a substantially completed part of the Work for the purpose 
for which it is intended (or a related purpose) prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.  
  

38. PCBs: Polychlorinated biphenyls.  
  

44



 

 
Page 5 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

39. Progress Payment Schedule: A schedule prepared by DB Entity and acceptable to Owner 
indicating that portion of the Contract Price to be paid for each major component of the Work.  
  

40. Project: Raw Water Intake and Pump Station Project, located in the town of Lake Don Pedro, 
California, within Mariposa County.  
  

41. Scheduled Final Acceptance Date: The date set forth in Article 13 of the Agreement by which 
Final Acceptance shall be achieved.  
  

42. Scheduled Substantial Completion Date: The date set forth in the Contract Documents by which 
the Work shall be substantially complete.  
  

43. Site: Lands or other areas designated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner 
upon which Construction is to be performed, including rights‐of‐way and easements for access 
thereto, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for use of DB Entity.  
  

44. Specifications: Those Submittals prepared by or for DB Entity and approved by Owner 
consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, 
standards and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details 
applicable thereto.  
  

45. Subcontractor or Sub‐consultant: An individual or entity other than a Design Sub‐consultant or 
Supplier who has a direct contract with DB Entity or with any other Subcontractor for the 
performance of a part of the Work. 
 

46. Submittal: A written or graphic document prepared by or for DB Entity which is required by the 
Contract Documents to be submitted to Owner by DB Entity.   Submittals may include 
Drawings, Specifications, progress schedules, shop drawings, samples, cash flow projections, 
and Schedules of Values.  Except for the Final Drawings and Specifications, Submittals are not 
Contract Documents.  
  

47. Substantial Completion: The time at which the Work (or a specified part) has progressed to the 
point where it is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the 
Work (or a specified part) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended.  The terms 
“substantially complete” and “substantially completed” as applied to all or part of the Work 
refer to Substantial Completion thereof.  
  

48. Supplier: A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman or vendor having a 
direct contract with DB Entity or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to 
be incorporated in the Work by DB Entity or any Subcontractor.  
  

49. Technical Requirements: The Technical Requirements consists of the information contained in 
Volumes 3A, 3B and 3C.  The Technical Requirements are to be included as part of the Contract 
Documents.  
  

50. Unit Price Work: Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.  
  

45



 

 
Page 6 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

51. Work: All Design Professional Services, Construction, and other obligations to be performed by 
DB Entity under the Contract Documents, including without limitation project management, 
supervision, training, testing, commissioning, and all other services and deliverables required 
by Contractor to achieve Final Acceptance of the Project in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  

  
52. Work Change Directive: A written directive to DB Entity, issued on or after the Effective Date of 

the Agreement and signed by Owner ordering an addition, deletion or revision in the Work, or 
responding to differing site conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to 
emergencies.  A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract 
Time(s), but is evidence that the parties expect that the change directed or documented by a 
Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order following 
negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Price or Contract Time(s).  
  

53. Work Product:  All Drawings, Specifications, Submittals, and other documents and data 
identified in the Contract Documents as being prepared or furnished by DB Entity and 
submitted to Owner.  

  
1.02. Terminology  
  

A. The words and terms discussed in Paragraph 1.02.B are not defined terms, but when used in the 
Contract Documents have the indicated meanings. 
 

B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives:  
  

1. The word “day” shall constitute a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next 
midnight.  
  

2. The word “defective,” when modifying the word “Construction” refers to Construction that is 
unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it does not conform to the Contract Documents, or 
does not meet the requirements of any inspection, reference standard, test or approval 
referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to Final Acceptance (unless 
responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial 
Completion) provided that the defect was not caused by Owner.  
  

3. The word “furnish,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall 
mean to supply and deliver said services, materials or equipment to the Site (or some other 
specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.  
  

4. The word “install,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean 
to put into use or place in final position said services, materials or equipment or equipment 
complete and ready for intended use.  
 

5. The words “perform” or “provide” when used in connection with services, materials, or 
equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete 
and ready for intended use.  

  

46



 

 
Page 7 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

6. When “furnish,” “install,” “perform,” or “provide” is not used in connection with services, 
materials, or equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of DB Entity, “provide” is 
implied.  
  

7. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases that have a well‐known 
technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in 
accordance with that meaning.  

  
  

ARTICLE  2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS  
  
2.01. Delivery of Bonds, Insurance Certificates and Insurance Declaration Page(s)  
  

A. When DB Entity delivers the executed Agreement to Owner, DB Entity shall also deliver to Owner: 
(a) certificates of insurance and the insurance declaration page(s) for the insurance requirements 
and policies set forth herein which DB Entity is required to purchase and maintain in accordance 
with Paragraphs 5.04 and 5.06; and (b) evidence that DB Entity is enrolled in the e‐verify system 
required by Paragraph 6.03 below.  

  
2.02. Commencement of Work; Notice to Proceed which shall be issued within 30 days of the signing of 

this Agreement or otherwise mutually agreed to in writing.  If the Notice to Proceed is not timely 
issued, then DB Entity can terminate the contract without penalty and recover costs expended due 
to the termination.  

  
A. DB Entity shall commence the Work in accordance with Contract Documents.  

  
2.03. Intent of the Contract Documents  
  

A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one shall be as binding as if 
required by all.  

  
B. All Work that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing custom 

or trade usage as necessary to properly execute and complete the Work to conform to the 
requirements of the Contract Documents shall be provided by DB Entity with no change in the 
Contract Price or Contract Time. Additionally:  

  
1. Arrangement and titles of drawings and organization of the specifications into divisions, 

sections and articles in the Contract Documents shall not be construed as segregating the 
various units of material and labor, dividing the Work among Subcontractors, or establishing 
the extent of Work to be performed by any trade. DB Entity may arrange and delegate the 
Work in conformance with trade practices, but DB Entity shall be responsible for completion of 
all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.  

  
2. Before undertaking the Work, DB Entity shall carefully study and compare the Contract 

Documents and check and verify pertinent figures therein and all applicable field 
measurements.  DB Entity shall promptly report in writing to Owner any conflict, error, 

47



 

 
Page 8 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

ambiguity, or discrepancy which DB Entity may discover and shall obtain a written 
interpretation or clarification from Owner before proceeding with any Work affected thereby.  

  
2.04. Submission of Schedules  
  

A. The schedules set forth below shall be included in the Contract Price Proposal:  
  

1. A progress schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing 
the various stages of the Work, including the Scheduled Substantial Completion Date upon 
which the proposal and progress schedule is based;  
  

2. A schedule of Submittals which will list each required Submittal and the times for submitting, 
reviewing and processing each Submittal; 

3. A Progress Payment Schedule for all of the Work which will include quantities and prices of 
items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into 
component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during 
performance of the Work.  Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and 
profit applicable to each item of Work; and  

  
4. A cash flow projection estimating that portion of the Contract Price to be due during each 

month of performance.  
  
2.05. Applicable Owner Policies  
  

A. DB Entity hereby agrees to be bound by all applicable Owner policies and standards of conduct. It is 
DB Entity’s responsibility to advise its employees, Design Subconsultants, Subcontractors, Suppliers, 
or hired workers of the nature of the Project, as described in the Contract Documents.  

  
 

ARTICLE  3 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:   INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE  
  
3.01. Intent of the Contract Documents  
  

A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is as binding as if called for 
by all.  

  
B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the Final Drawings and 

Specifications, to describe a functionally complete Project (or part thereof) to be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. DB Entity will furnish or perform all labor, 
documentation, services, materials, and equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the 
Contract Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to produce the 
intended result whether or not specifically called for, at no additional cost to Owner.  

   
3.02. Reference Standards  
  

A. Standards, Specifications, Codes, Laws or Regulations.  

48



 

 
Page 9 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
1. Reference to standards, specifications, manuals or codes of any technical society, organization or 

association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall 
mean (except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents) the standard, 
specification, manual, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect on the Effective Date of the 
Agreement.  

  
2. No provision of any such standard, specification, manual, or code, or instruction of a Supplier, shall 

be effective to change the duties and responsibilities of Owner, DB Entity, or any of their 
subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees from those set forth in the Contract Documents, 
nor shall it be effective to assign to Owner any duty or authority to supervise or direct the 
furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility 
inconsistent with the provisions of the Contract Documents.  

  
3.03. Resolving Discrepancies  
  

A. Except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the Contract 
Documents shall take precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy 
between the provisions of the Contract Documents and:  

  
1. The provisions of any such standard, specification, manual, code, or instruction (whether or not 

specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents); or  
  

2. The provisions of any such Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work 
(unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in 
violation of such Law or Regulation).  

  
B. Section 7.3 of the Agreement establishes the order of precedence shall apply in the case of direct, 

unresolvable conflicts between or among Contract Documents.  
  

C. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event of a discrepancy between the Contract Documents on the 
one hand and the Drawings and Specifications on the other hand, the Contract will control, except 
when Owner has accepted a Submittal pursuant to the Contract Document.  An accepted submittal 
shall have precedence over Contract Documents.  

  
3.04. Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents  
  

A. The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the 
Work or to modify the terms and conditions thereof in one or more of the following ways:  

  
1. A Work Change Directive to the extent there is no cost or time impact and is executed the 

parties;  
  

2. A Change Order;  
  

3. A written amendment executed by the Parties.  
  

4. Owner’s acceptance of required Submittals pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

49



 

 
Page 10 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 
3.05. Ownership and Use of Work Product  
  

A. DB Entity hereby assigns to Owner all right, title and interest, including but not limited to any 
intellectual property rights, copyrights and/or patents, in all Work Product.  All Work Product shall 
become the property of Owner upon the Owner’s payment to DB Entity of monies due in 
accordance with Article 13 this Agreement.  

  
B. The Work Product is not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by Owner or others on 

extensions of the Project or on any other project.   Any reuse is prohibited and without written 
verification or adaptation by DB Entity for the specific purpose intended will be at Owner’s sole risk 
and without liability or legal exposure to DB Entity.  DB Entity will be entitled to further 
compensation at rates to be agreed upon by Owner and DB Entity if it is asked by Owner to verify or 
adapt the Work Product for extensions of the Project or any other project.  

  
C. DB Entity may make and retain copies of the Work Product for information, reference, and use on 

this Project by DB Entity and all other DB‐Related Entities.  
  

D. Owner acknowledges and agrees that in the performance of the services under this Agreement, DB 
Entity will use its proprietary algorithms, software, hardware, databases and other background 
technology that DB Entity or any other DB‐Related Entity developed or licensed from third parties 
prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement (“Pre‐Existing Technology”). Pre‐Existing Technology 
used by a DB‐Related Entity in connection with the Project shall remain the property of such DB‐
Related Entity, but DB Entity shall cause such DB‐Related Entity to grant a non‐exclusive, 
irrevocable, royalty‐free license to Owner to use, copy or modify such Pre‐Existing Technology 
solely with respect to this Project as long as Owner is not in breach of the Agreement.  

  
E. With respect to any intellectual property rights in software vested in any third party that are 

supplied to Owner by DB Entity as part of the Work, but not prepared, developed or modified 
under or in connection with this Project, DB Entity shall use all reasonable efforts to obtain from 
such third party such permission, waiver, or license as may be necessary to enable the software to 
be used, copied, or modified by Owner solely in connection with this Project. [Note: after 
completion all related fees, costs and updating become Owner’s obligation] 

  
3.06. Electronic Data  
  

A. Copies of data furnished by Owner to DB Entity or by DB Entity to Owner that may be relied upon 
are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies).  Files in electronic media format of 
text, data, graphics, or other types are furnished only for the convenience of the receiving party. 
Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user’s 
sole risk.  If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies 
govern.  

  
B. Because data stored on electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or 

otherwise without authorization of the data’s creator, the party receiving data in electronic format 
agrees that it will perform acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days, after which the receiving 
party shall be deemed to have accepted the data thus transferred, except DB Entity shall be 

50



 

 
Page 11 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

entitled to rely upon such data unless DB Entity reasonably should know it is inaccurate.  Any errors 
detected within the 60‐day acceptance period will be corrected by the transferring party.  

  
C. When transferring documents in electronic media format, the transferring party makes no 

representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from 
the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from 
those used by the data’s creator.  

 
 

ARTICLE    4  –  AVAILABILITY OF  LANDS;  DIFFERING  SITE  CONDITIONS;  REFERENCE 
POINTS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS  
  
4.01. Availability of Lands  
  

A. Owner shall notify DB Entity of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but 
specifically related to use of the Site which DB Entity will have to comply in performing the Work. 
Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Owner will obtain in a timely manner and 
pay for easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities, if necessary 
and required.  If DB Entity and Owner are unable to agree on entitlement to or the amount or 
extent of any adjustments in the Contract Price or the Contract Time(s) as a result of any delay in 
Owner’s furnishing the Site, DB Entity may make a claim therefor as provided in Article 9.  

  
B. DB Entity shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for 

temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.  
  
4.02. Differing Site Conditions  
  

A. DB Entity shall promptly, but in no event later than ten (10) days, after discovery, and before the 
conditions are further disturbed, give a written notice to Owner of: (i) subsurface or latent physical 
conditions at the Site which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents; or (ii) 
unknown physical conditions at the Site, of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those 
ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inhering in work of the character called for by 
the Contract Documents.  

  
B. Owner will investigate the Site conditions promptly after receiving the notice.  If the conditions do 

materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in DB Entity’s cost of, or the time required 
for, performing any part of the Work, whether or not changed as a result of the conditions, an 
equitable adjustment shall be made under this clause and the Contract Price or Times modified in 
writing by Change Order in accordance with Article 9.  

  
C. No request by DB Entity for an equitable adjustment under Paragraph 4.02 shall be allowed unless 

DB Entity has given the written notice required; provided that the time prescribed in Paragraph 
15.02 for giving written notice may be extended by Owner.  

  

51



 

 
Page 12 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

D. The provisions of this Paragraph 4.02 are not intended to apply to a Hazardous Environmental 
Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site. 
 

E. DB Entity shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s) if: (a) DB 
Entity knew of the existence of such conditions as of the Effective Date of the Contract; or (b) the 
existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of the 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests or studies of the Site during DB Entity’s 
performance the Project. Owner and DB Entity and impacted parties agree on the investigation 
plan, and upon agreement, that plan becomes the basis for investigation and the basis for 
triggering a Differing Site Condition. 

  
F. In the event that a dispute arises between Owner and the DB Entity, whether the conditions 

materially differ, involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the DB Entity’s cost of 
or time required for performance of any part of the work, the DB Entity shall not be excused from 
any scheduled completion date provided for by the Construction Provisions but shall proceed with 
all work to be performed under the Construction Provisions.  The DB Entity shall retain any and all 
rights provided either by contract or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests 
between the contracting parties.  

  
4.03. Reference Points  
  

A. DB Entity shall be responsible for laying out the Work and shall protect and preserve the reference 
points and property monuments established by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 8.01.A.6.e, and shall 
make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of Owner.  DB Entity shall report 
to Owner whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires 
relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations and shall be responsible for the 
accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by 
professionally qualified personnel.  

  
4.04. Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site  
  

A. Owner represents to the best of its knowledge that a Hazardous Environmental Condition does not 
exist, and it has disclosed to DB Entity the existence of all known Hazardous Materials located at 
the Site, including type, quantity, and location.  

  
B. If DB Entity encounters any unknown Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site, it shall stop 

Work immediately in the affected part of the Work to the extent required to avoid any such safety 
or health hazard until it has taken such action as is necessary, in accordance with applicable Laws 
and Regulations, to protect the interests of any affected party.  DB Entity shall, immediately upon 
encountering any Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site, notify Owner and, if required by 
Laws and Regulations, assist Owner in providing notifications to all governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction over the Project or Site.  

  
C. DB Entity, working with Owner, shall take all necessary measures required to ensure that 

Hazardous Environmental Conditions are remediated or rendered harmless in accordance with 
applicable Laws and Regulations and included within the causes for equitable adjustment.  DB 
Entity shall, as may be directed by Owner and prior to proceeding with any such work: (a) obtain all 
environmental site assessments of the affected property and submit copies of such assessments to 

52



 

 
Page 13 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Owner for its approval; (b) develop remediation plans for the Hazardous Environmental Conditions, 
subject to Owner’s approval; and (c) obtain on Owner’s behalf all applicable approvals of 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project or Site to implement such plans.  
During the period of any investigation and remediation efforts, DB Entity shall take all necessary 
measures to isolate and contain such Hazardous Environmental Conditions from the unaffected 
parts of the Work and shall continue the Work to the maximum extent possible on unaffected parts 
of the Work.  

  
D. Except for those Hazardous Environmental Conditions and Hazardous Materials set forth in 

Paragraph 4.04.E below, DB Entity will be entitled to an adjustment to the Contract Price and/or 
Contract Time, in accordance with the requirements of these General Conditions, to the extent DB 
Entity’s cost and/or time of performance have been adversely impacted by the presence, removal 
or remediation of unknown Hazardous Environmental Conditions.  

  
E. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Paragraph 4.04, DB Entity shall bear full 

responsibility for the handling, treatment, storage, removal, remediation, avoidance, or other 
appropriate action (if any), with respect to: (a) any Hazardous Materials that were brought or 
caused to be brought on the Site by any act or omission of any DB‐Related Entity; and (b) the 
creation or exacerbation of any Hazardous Environmental Condition due to the gross negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct of any DB‐Related Entity.  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations, DB Entity shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties from 
and against all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and 
expenses, arising out of or resulting from Items (a) and/or (b) above.  

  
F. Nothing contained in this Paragraph 4.04 is intended to identify DB Entity as the generator of any 

pre‐existing Hazardous Materials, except as set forth in applicable Legal Requirements.  
  
 
 

ARTICLE  5 – BONDS AND INSURANCE  
  
4.01. Performance, Payment and Other Bonds  
  

A. On or before the Effective Date of this Agreement, DB Entity shall furnish performance and 
payment Bonds, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful 
performance and payment of all DB Entity’s obligations to furnish, provide and pay for the Work, 
including but not limited to all Design Professional Services.  The Performance Bond shall remain in 
effect until Project Acceptance by the District, except as provided otherwise by Laws or 
Regulations.  The Performance Bond shall be replaced with a Warranty Bond which shall be in 
effect for one (1) year from Project Acceptance by the District. DB Entity shall also furnish such 
other Bonds as are required by the Contract Documents.  The applicable section of California Civil 
Code Section 9550 et seq. shall apply.  

  
B. All Bonds shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the current list of “Companies Holding 

Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring 

53



 

 
Page 14 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Companies” as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Financial Management Service, Surety 
Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. Additionally, the surety shall:  

  
1. hold a certificate of authority authorizing it to write surety bonds in California; 
2. have twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the California insurance code at the 

time of the Effective Date of the Contract;  
3. be in compliance with the provisions of the California insurance code;  
4. hold a currently valid certificate of authority issued by the United States Department of the 

Treasury under 31 U.S.C. Sections 9304 to 9308; and  
5. provide an affidavit executed by an officer of the surety bond insurer as evidence that the 

surety company is in compliance with the foregoing requirements.  
  

All Bonds signed by an agent or attorney‐in‐fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that 
individual’s authority to bind the surety.  The evidence of authority shall show that it is effective on 
the date the agent or attorney‐in‐fact signed each bond.  
 

C. If the surety on any Bond furnished by DB Entity is declared a bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its 
right to do business is terminated in California or it ceases to meet the requirements of Paragraphs 
5.01.B and 5.02, DB Entity shall within twenty (20) days thereafter substitute another Bond and 
surety, both of which shall comply with the requirements of Paragraphs 5.01.B and 5.02.  
 

5.02. Licensed Sureties and Insurers  
  

A. All Bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents to be purchased and maintained by  
DB Entity shall be obtained from surety or insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized  
to conduct business in the state of California.  In addition, such sureties and insurance companies  
shall have an A.M. Best company rating of no less than A‐:VII.  
  

5.03. Certificates of Insurance  
  

A. DB Entity shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured  
identified in the Contract Documents, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance  
requested by Owner or any other additional insured, but not copies of policies) which DB Entity is 
required  
to purchase and maintain.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that  
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by  
Owner before Work commence.  
  

B. Failure of Owner to demand such certificates or other evidence of DB Entity’s full compliance  
with these insurance requirements or failure of Owner to identify a deficiency in compliance  
from the evidence provided shall not be construed as a waiver of DB Entity’s obligation to  
maintain such insurance.  
  

C. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract  
necessarily will be adequate to protect DB Entity. 
 

D. The insurance and insurance limits required herein shall not be deemed as a limitation on DB  
Entity’s liability under the indemnities granted to Owner and others in the Contract Documents.  

54



 

 
Page 15 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
5.04. DB Entity’s Insurance  

  
A. See Insurance Requirements in Exhibit 9.  

  
5.05. Owner is Self‐Insured  

  
A.  In addition to the insurance required to be provided by DB Entity under Paragraph 5.04, Owner is 

self‐insured to protect itself against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract 
Documents.  
  

5.06. Property Insurance  
  

A. DB Entity will purchase and maintain property insurance upon Construction.  Such insurance is in 
the amount of the full replacement cost of the Work. Such insurance shall:  
  
1. include the interests of Owner, DB Entity, and any other persons or entities identified in the 

Contract Documents, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest to the extent of 
their actual loss.  

  
2. be written on a Builder’s Risk “all  risk”  policy that shall at least include insurance for physical 

loss or damage to the Work, including any real or personal property delivered to the site and 
shall insure against at least the perils of fire, lightning, extended coverage, theft, vandalism and 
malicious mischief, flood, earthquake, collapse, debris removal, demolition occasioned by 
enforcement of Laws or Regulations, water damage and such other perils or causes of loss as 
may be specifically required by the Contract Documents;  

  
3. include expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any Owner’s property (including but 

not limited to fees and charges of Owner’s Advisor);  
  
4. cover materials and equipment stored at the Site or at another location that was agreed to in 

writing by Owner prior to being incorporated in the Work, provided that such materials and 
equipment have been included in an Application for Payment recommended by Owner;  

  
5. includes the hazards usually contained in a boiler and machinery policy, and any additional 

property insurance as may be required by the Contract Documents or Laws or Regulations;  
  
6. remain in effect and not be excluded by a “force majeure clause,” whether in these General 

Conditions or otherwise; and  
 

7. be maintained in effect until Final Acceptance unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Owner 
and DB Entity with thirty days written notice to each other person or entity that is identified as 
a loss payee in the Contract Documents.  

  
B. All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be 

purchased and maintained by DB Entity in accordance with this Paragraph 5.06 will contain a 
provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, renewal refused, or 
reduced in coverage or limits, until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to Owner 

55



 

 
Page 16 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

and to each other loss payee identified in the Contract Documents, and will contain waiver 
provisions in accordance with Paragraph 5.07.  
  

C. Owner shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance to protect 
the interests of any DB‐Related Entity to the extent of any deductible amounts that are identified in 
the Contract Documents.  The risk of loss within such identified deductible amount will be borne by 
DB Entity or the DB‐Related Entity suffering any such loss and if any of them wishes property 
insurance coverage within the limits of such amounts, each may purchase and maintain it at the 
purchaser’s own expense.  
  

D. If DB Entity requests in writing that other special insurance be included in the property insurance 
policies provided under Paragraph 5.06, Owner shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the 
cost thereof will be charged to DB Entity by appropriate Change Order.   Prior to commencement of 
the Work at the Site, Owner shall in writing advice DB Entity whether or not such other insurance 
has been procured by Owner.  
 

E. All Work performed for DB Entity by a DB‐Related Entity will be pursuant to an appropriate Design 
Sub‐agreement or Construction Sub‐agreement between DB Entity and the DB‐Related Entities 
which specifically binds the DB‐Related Entities to the applicable terms and conditions of the 
Contract Documents for the benefit of Owner.  Whenever any such agreement is with a DB‐Related 
Entity who is listed as a loss payee on the property insurance provided in Paragraph 5.06, the 
agreement between DB Entity and such DB‐Related Entity will contain provisions whereby the DB‐
Related Entity waives all rights against Owner, DB Entity, and all other loss payees (and their 
officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and 
subcontractors of each and any of them) for all losses and damages caused by any of the perils or 
causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work. If 
the insurers on any such policies require separate waiver forms to be signed by any DB‐Related 
Entity, DB Entity will obtain the same.  
  

5.07. Waiver of Rights  
  

A. Owner and DB Entity intend that all policies purchased in accordance with Paragraph 5.06 will 
protect Owner, DB Entity, and all DB‐Related Entities, and will provide primary coverage for all 
losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered thereby. All such policies shall 
contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will 
have no rights of recovery against any of the insureds or loss payees thereunder. Owner and DB 
Entity waive all rights against each other and their respective officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for 
all losses and damages caused by, arising out of or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss 
covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, 
waive all such rights against Owner’s Advisor, and DB‐Related Entities.  None of the above waivers 
shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the proceeds of insurance 
held by Owner as trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.  
  

5.08. Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds  
  

A. Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required by Paragraph 5.06 will be adjusted with 
DB Entity and made payable to DB Entity and Owner as joint loss payees and fiduciaries for the 

56



 

 
Page 17 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage 
clause and of Paragraph 5.08.B.  DB Entity shall deposit in a separate account any money so 
received, and shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may 
reach.  If no other special agreement is reached the damaged Construction shall be repaired or 
replaced, the moneys so received applied on account thereof and the Work and the cost thereof 
covered by an appropriate Change Order.  
  

B. DB Entity shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the  
parties in interest shall object in writing within 15 days after the occurrence of loss to DB Entity’s  
exercise of this power. If such objection be made, DB Entity shall make settlement with the insurers  
in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no such agreement 
among the parties in interest is reached, DB Entity shall adjust and settle the loss with the insurers 
and, if required in writing by any party in interest, DB Entity shall give bond for the proper 
performance of such duties.  Any deductible shall be paid by the party making a claim on the policy.  
In the event that multiple parties make a claim on the policy the deductible will be split between 
the parties in proportion to the amount claimed.  
  

5.09. Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace  
  

A. If Owner has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the Bonds or 
insurance required to be purchased and maintained by DB Entity in accordance with Article 5 on 
the basis of their not complying with the Contract Documents, Owner shall notify DB Entity in 
writing within ten days after receipt of the certificates and insurance declaration page(s) required 
by Paragraph 2.01.   DB Entity shall provide to Owner such additional information in respect of 
insurance provided as Owner may reasonably request.  If DB Entity does not maintain all of the 
Bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents, and without prejudice to any other right 
or remedy, Owner shall have the right to terminate DB Entity for cause under Paragraph 14.02.  
  

5.10. Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurance  
 

A. If Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial 
Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 13.06, no such use or occupancy shall 
commence before the insurers providing the property insurance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06 have 
acknowledged notice thereof and in writing effected any changes in coverage necessitated 
thereby..  
 
 

ARTICLE  6 – DB ENTITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
  

6.01. Design Professional Services  
  

A. General:  
  
1. The standard of care for all Design Professional Services performed or furnished by DB Entity 

under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject 
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality. 

57



 

 
Page 18 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if the Contract Documents contain specific 
performance standards, the services shall be performed to achieve such standards. 
 

2. DB Entity shall comply with all California laws with respect to the practice of land surveying and 
professional engineering.  

  
3. DB Entity assumes full responsibility for any portion or element of the Contract Documents that 

is incorporated into the Drawings and Specifications.  For the avoidance of doubt, DB Entity 
shall be responsible hereunder for any errors in the Work Product developed through Design‐
Build Agreement.  

  
4. Owner shall have the right to review and comment upon all DB Entity design documents, 

whether in draft or final form, including all field‐directed amendments to the design, in order to 
confirm the compliance and consistency of the design documents with the Contract 
Documents. DB Entity shall give due consideration and provide written responses to any 
comments delivered by Owner as to DB Entity’s design Submittals.  Neither compliance by DB 
Entity with the Contract Documents, nor review of and comment by Owner on DB Entity’s 
design documents, nor any failure or delay by Owner in commenting on any design Submittals, 
shall in any way relieve DB Entity of full responsibility for the design, construction, and 
performance of the Project in accordance with the Contract Documents.  

  
5. DB Entity shall, as part of the Design Professional Services, evaluate any design criteria, 

requirements or other data and information provided in the Contract Documents, and, if it 
believes that there are errors, omissions, contradictions or any other problems in the Contract 
Documents, it shall notify Owner accordingly.      

  
B. Design‐Build Services: DB Entity shall:  

  
1. On the basis of the Contract Documents, prepare Final Drawings showing the scope, extent, 

and character of the Construction to be performed and furnished by DB Entity and Final 
Specifications (which will be prepared, where appropriate, in general conformance with the 
format recommended by the Construction Specifications Institute, 16 Divisions, unless 
otherwise directed by the District);  

  
2. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data required for obtaining 

approvals of such governmental authorities as have jurisdiction to review or approve the final 
design of the Project, and assist Owner in consultations with appropriate authorities; 

 
3. Furnish the above documents, Drawings, and Specifications to and review them with Owner 

within the times indicated in the schedules described in Paragraph 2.04;   
  
4. Deliver all Design Professional Services and Construction in compliance with all Technical 

Requirements and other Contract Documents; and  
  
5. Identify any deviations from other Contract Documents.  
  

6.02. Supervision and Superintendence of Construction  
  

58



 

 
Page 19 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

A. DB Entity shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Construction competently and efficiently, 
devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to 
provide the Construction in accordance with the Contract Documents.  DB Entity shall be solely 
responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of the Work 
except as otherwise directed by the Owner.  DB Entity shall be responsible to see that the 
completed Construction complies fully with the Contract Documents and shall keep Owner 
advised as to the quality and progress of the Construction.  

  
B. At all times during the progress of Construction, DB Entity shall assign a competent resident 

superintendent who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner except under 
extraordinary circumstances.  The superintendent will be DB Entity’s representative at the Site 
and shall have authority to act on behalf of DB Entity.  All separate writing communications 
given to or received from the superintendent shall be binding on DB Entity.  The superintendent 
shall be able to read, write, speak, and understand the English language.  

  
6.03. Labor, Working Hours  

  
A. DB Entity shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to perform the Work as required by 

the Contract Documents. DB Entity shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.  
  
1. DB Entity shall remove from the Site any person in the employ of DB Entity or any 

Subcontractor or Consultant whom Owner reasonably believes may deem incompetent or unfit 
and such worker shall not again participate in the work and shall not again be employed on it 
except with written consent of Owner.  

  
2. DB Entity shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure that any employees of DB Entity or 

any of its Subcontractors or Consultants report for work in a manner fit to do their job and 
adhere to the following conditions.  Such employees: (i) shall not utilize tobacco on the Project 
Site, and (ii) shall not be under the influence of or in possession of any alcoholic beverage or 
any controlled substance (except a controlled substance as prescribed by a physician so long as 
the performance or safety at the Project Site is not affected thereby).  DB Entity shall advise its 
employees, Subcontractors, suppliers, and invitees of these requirements before they enter on 
the Project Site and shall immediately remove from the Project Site any person in violation of 
these requirements as determined by DB Entity or by Owner.  DB Entity shall impose these 
requirements on its Subcontractors, suppliers, and other invitees.  DB Entity shall execute, 
under penalty of perjury, the certification of a drug‐free workplace and certification of a 
tobacco‐free workplace on the forms provided herewith provided herewith. 

 
3. DB Entity shall comply with the requirements in Section 9 of Technical Requirements relating to 

Funding Requirements.  
  

B. Working Hours:  As provided in Article 3 (commencing at Section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 
of the Labor Code, DB Entity stipulates that eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal day’s 
work. The time of service of any worker employed at any time by DB Entity or by the work or upon 
any part of the work contemplated by this contract is limited and restricted to eight (8) hours 
during any one calendar day and forty (40) hours during any one calendar week, except as 
hereinafter provided. Notwithstanding the provisions hereinabove set forth, work performed by 
employees of DB Entity in excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours during any one 

59



 

 
Page 20 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

week upon this public work shall be permitted compensation of all hours worked in excess of eight 
(8) hours per day at not less than one and one‐half times the basic rate of pay.  
  

C. DB Entity shall pay to Owner a penalty of TWENTY‐FIVE DOLLARS ($25.00) for each worker 
employed in the execution of these Contract Documents by DB Entity or by any Subcontractor for 
each calendar day during which such workman is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) 
hours in any calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week in violation of the 
provisions of Article 3 (commencing at Section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor 
Code, unless compensation to the worker so employed by DB Entity is not less than one and one‐
half (1‐1/2) times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day.  
  

D. Any work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or on Sundays or other holidays 
shall be performed without additional expense to Owner, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
parties.  
  

E. Construction work under the Construction Provisions shall be accomplished on a schedule 
consistent with the normal and reasonable practices of Design‐Builder and in compliance with 
applicable ordinances.  
  

F. Prevailing Wage:  This Project is subject to the California Prevailing Wage Law. For convenience and 
for the purposes of reference, several provisions of the California Prevailing Wage Laws are set 
forth in this section. DB Entity shall be responsible for complying with the California Prevailing 
Wage Laws in their entirety, even if applicable provisions of the laws are not specifically listed in 
this Agreement.  
  
1. Pursuant to Section 1770, et seq., of the Labor Code of the State of California, the DB Entity 

shall pay its employees the general prevailing rate of wages as determined by the Director of 
the Department of Industrial Relations. In addition, the Respondent shall be responsible for 
compliance with the requirements of Section 1777.5 of the California Labor Code relating to 
apprentice public works contracts. In accordance with Section 1771.1 of the California Labor 
Code, a contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, 
subject to the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the 
performance of any contract for public work, as defined in this chapter, unless currently 
registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5. It is not a violation 
of this section for an unregistered contractor to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 
7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public 
Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to 
Section 1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded. No contractor or subcontractor may be 
awarded a contract for public work on a public works project (awarded on or after April 1, 
2015) unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to California 
Labor Code section 1725.5. In accordance with Section 1771.4 of the California Labor Code, this 
Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial 
Relations.  

  
2. Per Diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments for health and welfare, 

pension, vacation, travel time and subsistence pay as provided in Labor Code § 1773.1 
apprenticeship or other training programs authorized by Labor Code § 3093, and similar 
purposes when the term “per diem wages” is used herein.  

60



 

 
Page 21 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
3. Each worker needed to execute the Work must be paid travel and subsistence payments as 

defined in the applicable collective bargaining agreements in accordance with Labor Code § 
1773.1.  

  
4. Holiday and overtime work when permitted by law shall be paid for at a rate of at least one and 

one‐half times the above specified rate of per diem wages, unless otherwise specified.  
  
5. Each worker of DB Entity and any of its subcontractors engaged in work on the System shall be 

paid not less than the prevailing wage rate, regardless of any contractual relationship which 
may be alleged to exist between DB Entity or any subcontractors and such workers.  

  
6. DB Entity shall, as a penalty to Owner, forfeit an amount as determined by the Labor 

Commissioner pursuant to Labor Code § 1775 for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each worker paid less than the prevailing rate as determined by the director for such work or 
craft in which such worker is employed for any public work done under the contract by him or 
by any subcontractor under him. The difference between such prevailing wage rate and the 
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof, for which each worker 
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate, shall be paid to each worker by DB Entity.  

  
7. Copies of the determined prevailing wage rates are on file and available upon request at 

Owner’s office, or online at the California Department of Industrial Relations website, which 
may be located at www.dir.ca.gov.  Owner shall provide DB Entity with current prevailing wage 
rates, in writing, upon request.  DB Entity shall post, at an appropriate conspicuous point on the 
Site, a schedule showing all determined general prevailing wage rates.   Alternatively, DB Entity 
may obtain copies of the current prevailing wage rates from the Department of Industrial 
Relations.  

  
8. Any worker employed to perform work on the Project which is not covered by any classification 

available in Owner’s office, shall be paid not less than the minimum rate of wages specified for 
the classification which most nearly corresponds with work to be performed by him, and that 
minimum wage rate shall be retroactive to the time of initial employment of the person in the 
classification.  

  
G. Apprentices.  

  
1. All apprentices employed by DB Entity to perform services under these Contract Documents 

shall be paid the standard wage paid to apprentices under the regulation of the craft or trade at 
which that apprentice is employed and shall be employed only at the work of the craft or trade 
in which that apprentice is registered.  Only apprentices, as defined in Labor Code § 3077, who 
are in training under apprenticeship standards and written apprenticeship agreements under 
Chapter 4 (commencing at Section 3070), Division 3 of the Labor Code, are eligible to be 
employed under these Construction Provisions.  The employment and training of each 
apprentice shall be in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship standards and 
apprenticeship agreements under which that apprentice is training.  

  
2. When DB  Entity to  whom the  work  under these Construction Provisions is awarded by Owner 

or any Subcontractor under DB Entity, in performing any of the work under the Contract 

61



 

 
Page 22 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Documents, employs workers in any apprenticeable craft or trade, DB Entity and Subcontractor 
shall apply to the joint apprenticeship committee administering the apprenticeship standards 
of the craft or trade in the area of the Site of the public work, for a certificate approving DB 
Entity or Subcontractor under the apprenticeship standards for  the  employment  and  training  
of  apprentices  in  the  area  or  industry  affected. However, approval as established by the 
joint apprenticeship committee or committees shall be subject to the approval of the 
Administrator of Apprenticeship.  DB Entity or Subcontractors shall not be required to submit 
individual applications for approval to local joint apprenticeship committees provided they are 
already covered by the local apprenticeship standards.  The ratio of work performed by 
apprentices to journeymen, who shall be employed in the craft or trade on the public work, 
may be the ratio stipulated in the apprenticeship standards under which the joint 
apprenticeship committee operates, but in no case shall the ratio be less than one hour of 
apprentice work for each five (5) hours of labor performed by a journeyman, except as 
otherwise provided in Section 1777.5 of the Labor Code.  However, the minimum ratio for the 
land surveyor classification shall not be less than one apprentice for each five journeymen.  

  
3. “Apprenticeable craft or trade” as used in Labor Code § 1777.5 and this Article, means a craft or 

trade determined as an apprenticeable occupation in accordance with rules and regulations 
prescribed by the Apprenticeship Council.  

  
4. DB Entity, or any Subcontractor which, in performing any of the work under this contract, 

employs journeymen or apprentices in any apprenticeable craft or trade and which is not 
contributing to a fund or funds to administer and conduct the apprenticeship programming of 
any craft or trade in the area of the Site of the public work, to which fund or funds other DB 
Entities in the area of the Site of the public work are contributing, shall contribute to the fund 
or funds in each craft or trade in which that DB Entity employs journeymen or apprentices on 
the public work in the same amount or upon the same basis and in the same manner as other 
DB Entities do, but where the trust fund administrators are unable to accept the funds, DB 
Entities not signatory to the trust agreement shall pay like amount to the California 
Apprenticeship Council.  DB Entity or Subcontractor may add the amount of such contributions 
in computing their bid for the contract.  The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement is 
authorized to enforce the payment of the contributions to the fund or funds as set forth in 
Labor Code § 227.  

  
5. The responsibility of compliance with Labor Code § 1777.5 and this Article for all 

apprenticeable occupations is with DB Entity.  
  
6. The interpretation and enforcement of Sections 1777.5 and 1777.7 of the Labor Code shall be 

in accordance with the rules and procedures of the California Apprenticeship Council.  
  

H. Compliance: Failure to fully comply with Paragraphs A, B, C D, E, F and G above shall be a material 
breach of the Contract and cause for termination of the Contract for cause.  
  

6.04. Services, Materials, and Equipment  
  

A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, DB Entity shall furnish or cause to be 
furnished and assume full responsibility for the Work, including but not limited to all services, 
materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction   equipment   and   machinery, tools, 

62



 

 
Page 23 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all 
other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start‐up, and completion of 
the Work.  
  

B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be as specified by Owner, or in the 
Drawings or Specifications, or if not specified shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise 
provided in the Contract Documents.  All warranties and guarantees specifically called for by the 
Contract Documents shall expressly run to the benefit of Owner.  If required by Owner, DB Entity 
shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and 
quality of materials and equipment.  
  

C. All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, 
used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as 
otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.  
  

6.05. Progress Schedule  
  

A. DB Entity shall adhere to the progress schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.04.A as 
it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below:  
  
1. DB Entity shall submit to Owner for acceptance proposed adjustments in the progress schedule 

that will not change the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones). Such adjustments will conform 
generally to the progress schedule then in effect.  
 

2. Proposed adjustments in the progress schedule that will change the Contract Time(s) (or 
Milestones) shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 11.02. Such 
adjustments may only be made by a Change Order.  

  
3. If, in the opinion of Owner, DB Entity falls behind the progress schedule due to an  event  that  

does  not  enable  DB  Entity  to  extend  the  Contract  Time(s), including but not limited to 
actions or neglect of any DB‐Related Entity’s failure to perform part or all of the Work or to 
supply any equipment or materials, Owner may direct DB Entity, at DB Entity’s sole cost and 
expense, to take remedial steps, including, but not limited to, increasing the number of 
personnel, shifts, and/or overtime operations, days of Work, and/or amount of construction 
equipment until such time as the Work is back on schedule. In such event, DB Entity shall also 
submit for review not later than the time of submittal of the next request for partial payment, a 
supplementary schedule demonstrating the manner in which the acceptable rate and 
achievement of progress will be regained, all without additional cost to Owner.  

  
6.06. Concerning DB‐Related Entities  

  
A. DB Entity shall not employ any DB‐Related Entity or any individual against whom Owner may have 

reasonable objection.  DB Entity shall not be required to employ any Design Sub‐consultant or 
Subcontractor against whom DB Entity has reasonable objection.  
  

B. DB Entity shall be fully responsible to Owner for all acts and omissions of the DB‐Related Entities 
just as DB Entity is responsible for DB Entity’s own acts and omissions.  Nothing in the Contract 
Documents:  

63



 

 
Page 24 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
1. shall create for the benefit of any such DB‐Related Entity any contractual relationship between 

Owner and any such DB‐Related Entity;  
  
2. shall create any obligation on the part of Owner to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys 

due any DB‐Related Entity except as may otherwise be required by Laws or Regulations.  
  

C. DB Entity shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating all DB‐Related Entities.  
 

D. DB Entity shall require all DB‐Related Entities to communicate with Owner through DB Entity.  
 
6.07. Patent Fees and Royalties  

  
A. DB Entity shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the 

performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, 
product or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. [Note: discuss 
cost liability after acceptance] 
  

B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws or Regulations, DB Entity shall indemnify and hold harmless 
the Indemnified Parties from and against all claims, costs, losses and damages (including but not 
limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all 
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or resulting from any 
infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or 
resulting from the specification or incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, 
product or device furnished by DB Entity.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, DB Entity shall not be 
liable to Indemnified Parties and shall not be required to indemnify same. for infringement claims: 
(i) relating solely to a particular process or product of a particular manufacturer specified by Owner 
and not objected to in writing by DB Entity to Owner; (ii) arising from modifications to the Work by 
Owner after acceptance of the Work; or (iii) Owner’s use or operation of the Work for purposes 
other than intended.  
  

6.08. Permits  
  

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, DB Entity shall obtain and pay for all 
necessary permits, licenses, and approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Work.  If any such permit, license or approval of governmental authorities is required to be formally 
issued in the name of Owner, DB Entity shall undertake all efforts to obtain such permit, license or 
approval subject to Owner’s reasonable cooperation with DB Entity, including execution and 
delivery of appropriate applications and other documentation in forms approved by Owner.  
  

B. DB Entity shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the performance of 
the Work.  DB Entity shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections to the Work, and Owner 
shall pay all charges of such utility owners for capital costs related thereto.  
  

C. A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to 
the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any 
contract for public work unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant 
to Labor Code Section 1725.5.   It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor to 

64



 

 
Page 25 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

submit a bid that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by 
Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to 
perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded.  
  

D. In the event, the Owner is responsible for securing any permits or governmental approvals for the 
Work, the Owner shall secure such so that Contractor experiences no delay to the Project.  If any 
permits or governmental approvals are not timely secured, Contractor shall be entitled to an 
equitable extension to the Contract Time and an increase to the Contract Price.   

 
6.09. Laws or Regulations  

  
A. DB Entity shall give all notices required by and comply with all Laws or Regulations applicable to 

the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws 
and Regulations, Owner shall not be responsible for monitoring DB Entity’s compliance with 
any Laws or Regulations.  

  
B. If DB Entity performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or 

Regulations, DB Entity shall bear all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court 
or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work.  

  
C. Changes in Laws or Regulations not known on the Effective Date of the Contract having an 

effect increasing the cost or extending time of performance shall be the subject of a change in 
Contract Price or Contract Time(s). Notwithstanding the above, DB Entity shall not be entitled 
to an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time for, and assumes the risk of, any 
changes in Laws or Regulations related to DB Entity’s corporate existence or the maintenance 
of its business, including, but not limited to, gross receipt taxes, social security, Medicare, and 
other payroll‐related taxes.  

  
D. The DB Entity acknowledges to and for the benefit of the Owner and the State of California that 

it understands the goods and services under this Agreement are being funded with monies 
made available by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund and/or Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund that have statutory requirements commonly known as “American Iron and Steel;” that 
requires all of the iron and steel products used in the project to be produced in the United 
States (“American Iron and Steel Requirement”) including iron and steel products provided by 
the Contactor pursuant to this Agreement. The DB Entity hereby represents and warrants to 
and for the benefit of the Owner and the State that (a) the DB Entity has reviewed and 
understands the American Iron and Steel Requirement, (b) all of the iron and steel products 
used in the project will be and/or have been produced in the United States in a manner that 
complies with the American Iron and Steel Requirement, unless a waiver of the requirement is 
approved, and (c) the DB Entity will provide any further verified information, certification or 
assurance of compliance with this paragraph, or information necessary to support a waiver of 
the American Iron and Steel Requirement, as may be requested by the Owner or the State. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any failure to comply with this 
paragraph by the DB Entity shall permit the Owner or State to recover as damages against the 
DB Entity any loss, expense, or cost (including without limitation attorney’s fees) incurred by 
the Owner or State resulting from any such failure (including without limitation any impairment 
or loss of funding, whether in whole or in part, from the State or any damages owed to the 

65



 

 
Page 26 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

State by the Owner). While the DB Entity has no direct contractual privity with the State, as a 
lender to the Owner for the funding of its project, the Owner and the DB Entity agree that the 
State is a third‐party beneficiary and neither this paragraph (nor any other provision of this 
Agreement necessary to give this paragraph force or effect) shall be amended or waived 
without the prior written consent of the State. 
 

6.10. Taxes  
  

A. DB Entity shall pay all sales, consumer, use, employment‐related and other taxes required to be 
paid by DB Entity in accordance with the Laws or Regulations of the place of the Project which are 
applicable during the performance of the Work.  
  

6.11. Use of Site and Other Areas  
  

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas.  
  
1. DB Entity shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and 

the operations of construction workers to the Site and other areas permitted by Laws or 
Regulations and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and other areas with construction 
equipment or other materials or equipment. DB Entity shall assume full responsibility for any 
damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any adjacent land 
or areas DB Entity encroaches upon, resulting from the performance of the Work.  

  
2. Should any property damage claim be made by any such owner or occupant because of the 

performance of Work, DB Entity shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or 
otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law.  

  
3. DB Entity shall ensure that all employees performing or furnishing any of the Work will be 

prohibited from using firearms, engaging in hunting, fishing, trapping, using illegal drugs or 
using alcohol either on the work site, on Owner property, or on any land adjoining the work 
site.  

  
B. Removal of Debris:  During the performance of the Construction, DB Entity shall keep the premises 

free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris resulting from the 
Construction. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall 
conform to applicable Laws or Regulations.  
  

C. Cleaning:  Prior to Substantial Completion, DB Entity shall clean the Site and make it ready for 
utilization by Owner.  At completion of Construction, DB Entity shall remove all tools, appliances, 
construction equipment, temporary construction and machinery, and surplus materials and shall 
restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents. 
 

D. Loading Structures:  DB Entity shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in 
any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall DB Entity subject any part of the 
Construction or adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.  
 
 
 

66



 

 
Page 27 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

6.12. Record Documents  
  

A. DB Entity shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, 
Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, approved Submittals, QA/QC 
records, and all other written interpretations and clarifications in good order and annotated to 
show all changes made during performance of the Work.  Such copies shall constitute the “Record 
Documents” and will be available to Owner for reference.  
  

B. The Record Documents shall, as appropriate, be marked‐up as the Work progresses to reflect 
current conditions and shall become the “as‐built” plans.  The revisions are to be indicated in a 
neat, well‐organized manner and are to include the elevation and plan location of any utilities, 
structures, etc., encountered or installed.  A “record” survey book will be kept and shall include the 
following items:  
  
1. The location and elevation of all existing utilities, structures, etc. encountered.  
  
2. The finished product location and elevation of all utilities and structures installed, including, but 

not limited to, fire hydrants, catch basin and manhole lids, inverts, pipes, and any and all 
underground structures.  

  
The Record Documents shall comply with Paragraph 16.11 (“Records”).  
  
C. All record notes shall be kept in book(s) designated “record” and no other survey notes will be 

kept in such books. DB Entity will be required to review with Owner the status of the “as‐built” 
plans and the “record” survey notes in connection with Owner’s evaluation of an application 
for payment. Failure to maintain record documents current shall be just cause for Owner to 
withhold payments for Work performed.  

  
D. Within 30 days of recordation of the Notice Completion of the Work, the Record Documents 

will be delivered to Owner. DB Entity shall deliver to Owner a reproducible set of updated 
contract plans.   DB Entity will transfer all its “as‐built” information to these reproducible set of 
contract plans and deliver the resultant “as‐built” set of plans, together with the record survey 
book to Owner.  Each completed set of “as‐built” drawings must include on its face, a certified 
statement by DB Entity that the set of “as‐built” drawings accurately depicts the actual Work as 
constructed.  

  
6.13. Safety and Protection  

  
A. DB Entity shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety 

precautions and programs in connection with the Work.  Such responsibility does not relieve 
Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of 
their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations. DB Entity shall take all 
necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent 
damage, injury, or loss to:  
  
1. All persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;  
  

67



 

 
Page 28 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

2. All the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or 
off the Site; and  

  
3. Other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, 

pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and underground facilities not designated for 
removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.  

  
B. DB Entity shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or 

property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and shall 
erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection.  DB Entity shall 
notify owners of adjacent property and of underground facilities and utility owners when 
prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, 
removal, relocation, and replacement of their property.  

  
C. DB Entity shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner’s safety programs, if any. The 

Contract Documents identify any Owner’s safety programs that are applicable to the Work.  
  

D. DB Entity shall inform Owner of the specific requirements of DB Entity’s safety program with which 
Owner and its employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.  
  

E. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 6.13.A.2 or 6.13.A.3 caused, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by any DB‐Related Entity shall be remedied by DB Entity.  
  

F. DB Entity’s duties and responsibilities for safety and for protection of the construction shall 
continue until such time as all the Work is completed and Owner has issued a notice to DB Entity in 
accordance with Paragraph 13.08 that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly 
provided in connection with Substantial Completion).  
  

6.14. Safety Representative  
  

A. DB Entity shall designate a competent safety representative at the Site who has the experience, 
duty and responsibility to take prompt actions to eliminate hazards, correct unsafe conditions, and 
enforce the implementation of DB Entity’s safety requirements.  
  

6.15. Hazard Communication Programs  
  

A. DB Entity shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other 
hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or 
among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations. 

 
6.16. Emergencies  

  
A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or 

adjacent thereto, DB Entity is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. DB 
Entity shall give Owner prompt written notice if DB Entity believes that any significant changes in 
the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as 
a result thereof.   DB Entity shall be responsible for providing first aid and medical care in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.  

68



 

 
Page 29 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
B. DB Entity shall be required to secure or remove from the site, prior to a storm event, any materials 

or equipment which could cause bodily injury, damage to the Work, Owner’s installations and/or 
public or private property.  Site excavations shall be required to be secured and/or backfilled. No 
DB Entity equipment may be parked within 100 feet of any Owner facilities.  In the event of the 
issuance of a storm warning, Owner will attempt to notify DB Entity, however, DB Entity is 
responsible for preparing for a storm event.   DB Entity shall take the necessary precautions to 
protect the walking and motoring public from harm due to construction activity.  
  

C.  Owner may, but is not required to, order the work be stopped if a condition of eminent danger 
exists.  Nothing shall be construed to shift responsibility or risk of loss for injuries and /or damages, 
cost of stoppage or delay of work, from DB Entity to Owner.  DB Entity shall remain solely and 
exclusively responsible for compliance with all safety requirements and the safety of all persons 
and property at the Site.  
  

6.17. Continuing the Work  
  

A. DB Entity shall continue the Work and adhere to the progress schedule during all disputes or 
disagreements with Owner.  No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any 
disputes or disagreements, except as set forth in Paragraph 14.04 or as DB Entity and Owner may 
otherwise agree in writing.  
  

6.18. DB Entity’s General Warranty and Guarantee  
  

A. DB Entity warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Construction will be in accordance with the 
Contract Documents and will not be defective.  
  

B. DB Entity’s warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:  
  
1. abuse, modification or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than a DB‐Related 

Entity; or  
  
2.  normal wear and tear under normal usage.  
  

C. DB Entity’s obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents shall be absolute.  None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is 
not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of DB Entity’s obligation to perform 
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents except if Owner issues a Certificate of 
Completion, accepts or occupies all or any part of the work or approves a submittal with actual 
knowledge of deviation from the Contract Documents: 
 
1. Observations by Owner;  
  
2. The making of any progress or final payment;  
  
3. The issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion;  
  
4. Use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;  

69



 

 
Page 30 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
5. Any review and approval of a Submittal;  
  
6. Any inspection, test, or approval by others; or  
  
7. Any correction of defective Work by Owner.  
  

6.19. Indemnification  
  

A. DB Entity agrees to and does hereby defend, indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and all of its 
representatives, appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, and other duly authorized 
non‐professional representatives (the “Indemnified Parties”) from every claim or demand made, 
and every liability, loss, damage, expense or attorney’s fees of any nature whatsoever, which may 
be incurred by reason of:  
  
1. Liability for: (1) death or bodily injury to persons; (2) damage or injury to, loss (including theft), 

or loss of use of, any property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any provision of 
law or the Contract Documents; or (4) any other loss, damage or expense, sustained by any 
person, firm or corporation (collectively an “Indemnity Claim”) arising from any act, omission or 
breach of DB Entity or any person, firm or corporation employed by, under contract with, or 
acting on behalf of Design‐Builder, arising out of or in any way connected with the Work 
performed by DB Entity, its employees, contractors and/or agents pursuant to this Agreement 
or the Contract Documents, whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off Owner 
Property, except for liability resulting from the negligence or the willful misconduct of any of 
the Indemnified Parties or others under control or obligation to the Indemnified Parties; and  

  
2. Any dispute between DB Entity and DB Entity’s subcontractors, suppliers and/or sureties, 

including, but not limited to, any failure or alleged failure of the DB Entity (or any person hired 
or employed directly or indirectly by the DB Entity) to pay any subcontractor or materialman of 
any tier or any other person employed in connection with the Work and/or filing of any stop 
notice or mechanic’s lien claims.  

  
B. DB Entity, at its own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any and all third party claims, actions, 

suits, or other proceedings, including any and all appeals thereof, that may be brought or instituted 
against Owner, its officers, agents or employees, on account of or founded upon any cause, 
damage, or injury identified in this Section except for liability resulting from the sole or active 
negligence or the willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified Parties and shall pay or satisfy any 
final and non‐appealable judgment that may be rendered against Owner, its officers, agents or 
employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof, except for Indemnified 
Parties proportional liability resulting from the sole or active negligence or the willful misconduct of 
any of the Indemnified Parties. DB Entity may select counsel to provide such defense, subject to 
acceptance by Owner, which acceptance shall not unreasonably be withheld.  
  

C. In any and all claims against an Indemnified Parties by any employee (or the survivor or personal 
representative of such employee) of a DB‐Related Entity, the indemnification obligations under 
Paragraphs 6.19.A and 6.19.B shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 
type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for a DB‐Related Entity under workers’ 
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.  

70



 

 
Page 31 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 ARTICLE  7 – OTHER CONSTRUCTION  
  

7.01. Related Work at Site  
  

A. Owner may perform work, or cause other work to be performed, related to the Project at the Site 
with Owner’s employees, or through other direct contracts therefor, or through other utility 
owners. If such other work is not noted in the Contract Documents, then: [Note: discuss and 
disclose work and others individual scope required or contemplated here] 
  
1. Written notice thereof will be given to DB Entity prior to starting any such other work; and  
  
2. If Owner and DB Entity are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the extent, if any, of any 

adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s) that should be allowed as a result of such 
other work, DB Entity may make a claim therefor as provided in Article 9 if DB Entity believes 
that such performance will involve additional expense to DB Entity or requires additional time.  

  
B. DB Entity shall cooperate with each other contractor listed in this Agreement who is a party to such 

a direct contract and each utility owner (and Owner, if Owner is performing the additional work 
with Owner’s employees) and jointly determine safe access requirements and if available areas for 
the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other work and 
shall properly connect and coordinate the Work with theirs.  Unless otherwise provided in the 
Contract Documents, DB Entity shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be 
required to make its several parts come together properly and integrate with such other work.  DB 
Entity shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering such 
work; provided, however, that DB Entity may cut or alter others’ work with the written consent of 
Owner and the others whose work will be affected.  The duties and responsibilities of DB Entity 
under this paragraph are for the benefit of such utility owners and other contractors to the extent 
that there are comparable provisions for the benefit of DB Entity in said direct contracts between 
Owner and such utility owners and other contractors.  
  

C. If the proper execution or results of any part of DB Entity’s Work depends upon work performed or 
services provided by others under this Article 7, DB Entity shall inspect such other work and 
appropriate instruments of service and promptly report to Owner in writing any delays, defects or 
deficiencies in such other work or services that render it unavailable or unsuitable for the proper 
execution and results of DB Entity’s Work.  DB Entity’s failure so to report will constitute an 
acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with DB Entity’s Work except for 
latent or nonapparent defects and deficiencies in such other work.  
  

7.02. Coordination  
  

A. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work on the Project at the 
Site, the following will be set forth in Contract Documents:  
  
1. The individual or entity that will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the 

activities among the various prime contractors will be identified;  
  
2. The specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility will be itemized; and  

71



 

 
Page 32 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
3. The extent of such authority and responsibilities will be provided.  
  

B. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Owner shall have sole authority and 
responsibility in respect of such coordination.  
  

7.03. Legal Relationships  
  

A. Each other direct contract of Owner under Paragraph 7.01.A shall provide that the other contractor 
is liable to Owner for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by DB Entity as a 
result of the other contractor’s wrongful actions or inactions.  
  

B. DB Entity shall be liable to Owner for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by 
such other contractor as a result of DB Entity’s non‐compliance with this Agreement.  
 

C. Owner shall be liable to the DB entity for the increased costs, or any delay, incurred by the DB 
Entity as a result of Owner’s other contractor or contractors’ acts, errors, or omissions or 
interference in DB entity’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 
  

ARTICLE  8 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
  

8.01. General  
  
A. Owner shall do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of DB Entity:  

  
1. Designate in writing a person to act as Owner’s Representative with respect to the services to 

be rendered under this Agreement.  Such person shall have complete authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner’s policies, make decisions with 
respect to performance of the Work, and shall provide such other services as may be agreed 
upon;  
 

2. Make payments to DB Entity promptly when they are due as provided in Paragraphs 13.03 and 
13.09;  

  
3. Furnish the Site as set forth in Paragraph 4.01.A;  
  
4. Furnish to DB Entity, as required for performance of DB Entity’s Services, the following:  
  

a. Environmental assessment and impact statements;  
  

b. Property, boundary, easement, right‐of‐way, topographic, and utility surveys;  
  

c. Property descriptions;  
  

d. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions;  
  

72



 

 
Page 33 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

e. Engineering surveys to establish reference points for design and construction which in 
Owner’s judgment are necessary to enable DB Entity to proceed with the Work;  
  

f. Assistance to DB Entity in filing documents required to obtain necessary permits, licenses, 
and approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;  
  

g. Permits, licenses, and approvals of government authorities Owner is specifically required to 
obtain by the Contract Documents; and  
  

h. Furnish and provide all reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or contiguous to the Site, all drawings known to owner of physical conditions 
relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site, and any information or data 
known to Owner concerning underground facilities at the Site.  

  
5. Review Submittals subject to Owner review pursuant to the Contract Documents; and  
  
6.  Provide information known to Owner relating to the presence of materials and substances at 

the Site which could create a Hazardous Environmental Condition.  
  

8.02. Insurance  
  

A. Owner’s responsibilities in respect of purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance 
are set forth in Article 5. 
 

8.03. Limitations on Owner’s Responsibilities  
  

A. Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, DB 
Entity’s means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or the safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of DB Entity to comply with Laws or 
Regulations applicable to the furnishing or performance of the Work.  Owner will not be 
responsible for DB Entity’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.  
  

8.04. Undisclosed Hazardous Materials and Hazardous Environmental Conditions  
  

A. Owner’s responsibility in respect of undisclosed Hazardous Materials and Hazardous Environmental 
Conditions uncovered or revealed at the Site is set forth in Paragraph 4.04.  
  

8.05. Compliance with Safety Program  
  

A. While at the Site, Owner’s employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable 
requirements of DB Entity’s safety programs of which Owner has been informed pursuant to 
Paragraph 6.13.D.  
 
 
  

73



 

 
Page 34 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

ARTICLE  9 – CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS  
  

9.01. Authorized Changes in the Work  
  

A. Any change in the scope of the Work, method of performance, nature of materials or price thereof, 
or any other matter materially affecting the performance or nature of the Work shall not be paid 
for or accepted unless such change, addition, or deletion is approved in advance and in writing by a 
valid change order executed by Owner and approved by the Owner in accordance with this 
Agreement and the Contract Documents.   The foregoing notwithstanding, the DB Entity shall 
continue to perform its Work under the Agreement with respect to all undisputed portions of the 
Work not dependent upon the change and shall not cause a delay of the Work by virtue of the 
inability of Owner and DB Entity to agree upon the extent of any adjustment to the Contract Time 
and/or the Project Price on account of such change, except to the extent that achievement of the 
Contract Time is dependent upon the change.  DB Entity specifically understands, acknowledges, 
and agrees that Owner shall have the right to request any alterations, deviations, reductions, or 
additions to the Project or Work, and the cost thereof shall be added to or deducted from the 
amount of the Project pursuant to the Change Order process in Contract Documents.  
  

B. Required Documentation.  DB Entity agrees to provide Owner with all information requested to 
substantiate the cost of the change order and to inform Owner whether the Work will be done by 
the DB Entity or a subcontractor.  DB Entity shall maintain detailed records on a daily basis for force 
account work or when practical under the circumstances.   Such records shall include without 
limitation hourly records for labor and Construction Equipment and itemized records of materials 
and equipment used that day in connection with the performance of any Change to the Work. In 
the event that more than one Change to the Work is performed by the DB Entity in a calendar day, 
DB Entity shall maintain separate records of labor, Construction Equipment, materials and 
equipment for each such Change.  In the event that any Subcontractor, of any tier, shall provide or 
perform any portion of any Change to the Work, DB Entity shall require that each such 
Subcontractor maintain records in accordance with this provision.  Each daily record maintained 
hereunder shall be signed by DB Entity’s Superintendent or DB Entity’s authorized representative; 
such signature shall be deemed DB Entity’s representation and warranty that to the best of signor’s 
knowledge information contained therein is true, accurate, complete, and relate only to the Change 
referenced therein.  All records maintained by a subcontractor, of any tier, relating to the costs of a 
Change to the Work shall be signed by such subcontractor’s authorized representative or 
superintendent.  All records maintained hereunder shall be subject to inspection, review and/or 
reproduction by Owner upon request.    
  

C. Adjustment to Contract Time.  Except as otherwise stated this Agreement, including the General 
Conditions and the Contract Documents, the Contract Time may be extended or reduced by change 
order if the performance of such Change necessitates such extension or reduction.  DB Entity shall 
submit, prior to approval of the change order, its request for a time extension (if any), as well as all 
information necessary to substantiate its belief that such change will delay the completion of the 
Work.  If DB Entity fails to submit its request for a time extension or the necessary supporting 
information, it shall be deemed to have waived its right to request such extension.  
 
 
 

74



 

 
Page 35 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

9.02. Unauthorized Changes in the Work  
  

A. DB Entity shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract 
Time(s) with respect to any Work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as 
amended, modified and supplemented as provided in Paragraph 3.04, except in the case of an 
emergency as provided in Paragraph 6.16 or in the case of uncovering Construction as provided in 
Paragraph 12.04.  
  

9.03. Claims  
  

A. If DB Entity shall claim compensation for any reason, including, without limitation, changes to the in 
the Work or Services, extensions of time, and/or damages sustained by DB Entity for which it may 
seek recovery from Owner (“Claim”), DB Entity shall, within ten (10) business days after DB Entity 
becomes aware or should have been reasonably aware of the first occurrence giving rise to the 
Claim, make and deliver to Owner a written statement of the amount of the Claim, the first 
occurrence giving rise to the Claim, and a description of the occurrences, events and bases for the 
Claim (“Notice of Claim”).  DB Entity shall file with Owner an itemized statement of all details and 
the amount of the Claim within thirty (30) business days of delivery to Owner of the Notice of 
Claim. Thereafter all claims shall be handled in accordance with Article 15 below. 
 

9.04. Execution of Change Orders  
  

A. Owner and DB Entity shall execute appropriate change orders (or written amendments) covering:  
  
1. Changes in the Work which are:  

  
a. ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 9.01;  
  
b. Required because of acceptance of defective work under Article 13 or Owner’s correction 

of defective work under Article 12; or  
 

c. Undisputed claims agreed to by the parties 
 
2. Changes in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s) which are agreed to by the parties, including 

any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a 
change order or amendment; and  

  
3. Unilateral changes in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s) which are issued by Owner, 

including any undisputed and/or disputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed 
in accordance with a change order or amendment.  DB Entity’s reserves all rights and remedies 
related to the unilateral change order under the Agreement; and  

  
4. Changes in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s) which embody the substance of  any  written  

decision  rendered  by  Owner  pursuant  to  Paragraph  15.02; provided that, in lieu of 
executing any such change order, an appeal may be taken from any such decision in accordance 
with the provisions of the Contract Documents and applicable Laws and Regulations, but during 
any such appeal, DB Entity shall carry on the work and adhere to the progress schedule 
pursuant to, among other provisions of the Contract Documents, Paragraph 6.18.  

75



 

 
Page 36 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
5. DB Entity acknowledges that a mutual agreement on any change order shall constitute a final 

settlement and full accord and satisfaction of all matters relating to the change directly or 
indirectly changed or unchanged in the Work which is the subject of the change order, 
including, but not limited to, all direct, indirect costs, and impact costs associated with such 
change, including inefficiencies or acceleration based claims, and any and all adjustments to the 
Contract Price and Contract Time(s), and schedule unless compensation claimed is reserved.   

  
9.05. Notice to Sureties  

  
A. If notice of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract 

Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Time(s)) is required by the 
provisions of any Bond to be given to a surety, the giving of any such notice will be DB Entity’s 
responsibility. The amount of each applicable Bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such 
change.  
 
 

ARTICLE  10 – COST OF THE WORK; CASH ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK  
  

10.01. Cost of the Work  
  

A. Costs Included: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred and paid 
by DB Entity in the proper performance of the Work.  When the value of Work covered by a Change 
Order or when a claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the 
Work, the costs to be reimbursed to DB Entity will be only those additional or incremental costs 
required because of the change of the Work or because of the event giving rise to the claim.   
Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, such costs shall be in amounts no higher 
than those prevailing in the locality of the Project if reasonably practical under the circumstances 
and shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 10.01.B, and shall include only the 
following items:  
  
1. Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of DB Entity in the performance of the Work 

under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and DB Entity.  
  

a. Such employees shall include without limitation superintendents, foremen, and other 
personnel employed full‐time at the Site.   Payroll costs for employees not employed full 
time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work.  
Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe 
benefits which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll 
taxes, workers’ compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation 
and holiday pay applicable thereto.  The expenses of performing Work after regular 
working hours, on Saturday, Sunday or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the 
extent authorized by Owner.  
  

b. Such employees shall also include engineers, engineering technicians, architects, and 
others providing Design Professional Services.  For purposes of this Paragraph 10.01.A.1, DB 

76



 

 
Page 37 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Entity shall be entitled to payment for such employees an amount equal to salary costs 
times a factor, both as designated in the Agreement, for all services performed or furnished 
by such employees engaged on the Project.  

  
2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of 

transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers’ field services required in connection 
therewith.  All cash discounts shall accrue to DB Entity unless Owner deposits funds with DB 
Entity with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to Owner. 
All trade discounts, rebates and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and 
equipment shall accrue to Owner, and DB Entity shall make provisions so that they may be 
obtained.  

  
3. Payments made by DB Entity to Subcontractors (excluding payments for Design Professional 

Services pursuant to Paragraph 10.01.A.4) for Work performed or furnished by Subcontractors.  
If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the 
Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor’s Cost of the Work and fee shall be determined in the same 
manner as DB Entity’s Cost of the Work and fee.  

  
4. Payments made by DB Entity for Design Professional Services provided or furnished under a 

Design Sub‐agreement.  
  
5. Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing 

laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for services specifically related 
to the Work.  

  
6. Supplemental costs including the following items:  
  

a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel and subsistence expenses of DB Entity’s 
employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.  
  

b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, 
machinery, appliances, office and temporary facilities at the Site and hand tools not owned 
by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market 
value, of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of DB Entity.  
  

c. Rentals of all construction or engineering equipment and machinery and the parts thereof 
whether rented from DB Entity or others in accordance with rental agreements approved 
by Owner, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, installation, dismantling and 
removal thereof.  All such costs shall be in accordance with the terms of said rental 
agreements but in the absence of a rental agreement the Caltrans’ equipment rate 
schedule shall apply.  The rental of any such equipment, machinery or parts shall cease 
when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.  
  

d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which DB Entity 
is liable, imposed by Laws or Regulations.  
  

e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of a DB‐Related Entity, and royalty payments 
and fees for permits and licenses.  

77



 

 
Page 38 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
f. Losses, damages, and related expenses caused by damage to the Work not compensated by 

insurance or otherwise, sustained by DB Entity in connection with the furnishing and 
performance of the Work provided they have resulted from causes other than the 
negligence of a DB‐Related Entity.  Such losses shall include settlements made with the 
written consent and approval of Owner.  No such losses, damages, and expenses shall be 
included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining DB Entity’s fee.  
  

g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.  
  

h. Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the 
Site, express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the 
Work.  
  

i. Cost of premiums for all Bonds and insurance DB Entity is required by the Contract 
Documents to purchase and maintain.  

  
B. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:  

  
1. Payroll costs and other compensation of DB Entity’s officers, executives, principals (of 

partnerships and sole proprietorships), general managers, engineers, architects,  estimators,  
attorneys,  auditors,  accountants,  purchasing  and contracting agents, expediters, 
timekeepers, clerks and other personnel employed by DB Entity whether at the Site or in DB 
Entity’s principal or a branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically 
included in  the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 10.01.A.1, 
all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by DB Entity’s fee.  

  
2. Expenses of DB Entity’s principal and branch offices other than DB Entity’s office at the Site 

unless pricing work related to an Owner caused delay to the project.  
  
3. Any part of DB Entity’s capital expenses, including interest on DB Entity’s capital employed for 

the Work and charges against DB Entity for delinquent payments.  
  
4. Costs due to the negligence of a DB‐Related Entity, including but not limited to the correction 

of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any 
damage to property.  

  
5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically 

and expressly included in Paragraph 10.01.A except in the event of compensable delays for 
which Owner is responsible.  

  
C. DB Entity’s Fee:  When the value of the Work covered by a Change Order is determined on the 

basis of Cost of the Work, DB Entity’s fee shall be determined as set forth in Paragraph 11.01.C.  
  
D. Documentation:   Whenever the cost of any Work is to be determined pursuant to Paragraph 

10.01.A and 10.01.B, DB Entity will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to Owner an itemized 
cost breakdown together with supporting data. 

78



 

 
Page 39 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 
10.02. Unit Prices  

  
A. Where the Contract provides that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the 

Contract Price will be deemed to include for all of Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum 
of the established unit prices for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the 
estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement. The estimated quantities of 
items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of determining an 
initial Contract Price.  Determinations of the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price 
Work performed by DB Entity will be made by Owner.  

  
B. No unit price will have any DB Entity’s overhead or fee in such item.  
  
C. If the actual quantity of any item of Unit Price Work varies more than twenty‐five percent (25%) 

above or below the estimated quantity, either party may request an adjustment in the Contract 
Price. Any such adjustment shall be based upon any increase or decrease in costs due solely to 
the variation above one hundred twenty‐five percent (125%) or below seventy‐five percent 
(75%) of the estimated quantity.  

  
 

ARTICLE  11 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIME(S)  
  

11.01. Change of Contract Price  
  

A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any claim for an adjustment in the 
Contract Price shall be based on written notice delivered by DB Entity to Owner promptly in 
accordance with Paragraph 15.02.  
  

B. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an adjustment in the Contract 
Price will be determined as follows:  
  
1. Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by 

application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions 
of Paragraph 10.03); or  

  
2. Where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, 

by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not 
necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 11.01.C); or  

  
3. Where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents 

and agreement to a lump sum is not reached under Paragraph 11.01.B.2, on the basis of the 
Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 10.01) plus a DB Entity’s Fee for 
overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.01.C). 

 
C. DB Entity’s Fee on any Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an adjustment in the 

Contract Price shall be ten percent (10%) of the amount set forth in Paragraph 11.01.B above.  

79



 

 
Page 40 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
D. Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price that is 

being performed by Design Sub‐consultants, Subcontractors or Suppliers of any tier shall be limited 
to the following markups, which markup shall compensate Design Sub‐consultant, Subcontractor, 
Supplier for all indirect costs, field and home office overhead, and profit:  
  
1. A total markup of ten percent (10%) of the costs incurred by such Design Sub‐consultant, 

Subcontractor or Supplier under Paragraphs 10.01.A.1 and 10.01.A.2.  
  
2. Any higher tier Design Sub‐consultant, Subcontractor or Supplier will be paid a total markup of 

ten percent (10%) of the amount paid to the next lower tier Design Sub‐consultant, 
Subcontractor or Supplier.  

  
E. The amount of credit to be allowed by DB Entity to Owner for any change which results in a net 

decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost; and  
  
F. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, DB Entity’s fee shall be 

computed on the basis of amount of the net increase or decrease in cost.  If there is a net 
increase in cost, then the fee shall be as set forth in Paragraph 11.01.C, and if there is a net 
decrease, the fee deduction shall be as set forth in Paragraph 11.01.E.  

  
11.02. Change of Contract Time(s)  

  
A. The Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) may only be changed by a Change Order.  Any claim for an 

adjustment of the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) shall be based on written notice pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.02. All adjustments for additional time must include a detailed critical path analysis of 
the Contract schedule.  
  

B. Any adjustment of the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) covered by a change order or of any claim 
for an adjustment in the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) will be determined in accordance with 
the provisions of this Paragraph 11.02.  
  

C. Delays Beyond DB Entity’s Control:  Where DB Entity is prevented from completing any part of the 
Work within the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) due to delay beyond the control of DB Entity, the 
Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) will be extended in an amount equal to the time lost due to such 
delay if a claim is made therefor as provided in Paragraph 11.02.A and an equitable adjustment in 
Contract Price, if necessary.  Delays beyond the control of DB Entity shall include, but not be limited 
to, documented supply change delays, acts or neglect by Owner, governmental agencies, failure of 
the Owner to timely secure required permits and complete environmental requirements that are 
the responsibility of the Owner, changes of law pursuant to Paragraph 6.09.C, acts or neglect of 
utility owners or other contractors performing other construction work as contemplated by Article 
7, fires, floods, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, or other acts of God.  
 

D. If DB Entity intends to seek an adjustment in the Contract Time for abnormal weather conditions, it 
shall, in addition to fulfilling all other requirements for a time extension, demonstrate that the 
actual weather encountered was unusually severe and abnormal compared with the five‐year 
average weather statistics compiled by the United States National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration (“NOAA”) for the time of year and locality of the Site.  

80



 

 
Page 41 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
E. If Owner or other contractor or utility owners performing other work for Owner as contemplated 

by Article 7, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the 
performance or progress of the Work, then DB Entity shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in 
the Contract Price or the Contract Time(s), or both.  DB Entity’s entitlement to an adjustment of the 
Contract Time(s) is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to DB Entity’s ability to 
complete the Work within the Contract Time(s).  
  

F. If DB Entity is delayed in the performance or progress of the Work by fire, flood, epidemic, 
abnormal weather conditions, acts of God, acts or failures to act of utility owners not under the 
control of Owner, or other causes not the fault of and beyond control of Owner and DB Entity, then 
DB Entity shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Time(s), if such adjustment is 
essential to DB Entity’s ability to complete the Work within the Contract Time(s).   Such an 
adjustment shall be DB Entity’s sole and exclusive remedy for the delays described in this Paragraph 
11.02.G. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence:  
  
1. If such delays result in Owner suspending the Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.01, DB 

Entity’s remedy shall be as specified in that provision.  
  
2. If the total aggregate of such delays exceeds thirty (30) days, commencing on the Notice to 

Proceed, then DB Entity shall be entitled to treat the days of delay that exceed such 30‐day 
period in the same manner as set forth in Paragraph 11.02.F above.  

  
G. DB Entity shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time(s) for delays 

within the control of DB Entity.   Delays attributable to and within the control of a DB‐Related Entity 
shall be deemed to be delays within the control of DB Entity.  
  

H. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article 11 or in any other Contract Document, 
neither parties shall be entitled to recover, for any time‐related or delay damages for: (1) 
consequential damages (including but not limited to loss of bonding capacity, loss of bidding 
opportunities); and (4) legal fees, claims preparation expenses, or the cost of dispute resolution.  
 
  

ARTICLE  12 – TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE 
OF DEFECTIVE WORK  

  
12.01. Notice of Defects  

  
A. Owner shall give DB Entity prompt written notice of all defective Construction of which Owner has 

actual knowledge.  All defective Construction may be rejected, corrected or accepted as provided in 
this Article 12.  
  

12.02. Access to Construction  
  

81



 

 
Page 42 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

A.  Owner, Owner’s Advisor, other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing 
laboratories and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests will have access to the Site and 
the Construction at reasonable times for their observation, inspecting, and testing.  DB Entity shall 
provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of DB Entity’s Site safety 
procedures and programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.  
  

12.03. Tests and Inspections  
  

A. If the Contract Documents or Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any 
part of the Construction specifically to be inspected, tested or approved, DB Entity shall assume full 
responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests or approvals, pay all costs in 
connection therewith, and furnish Owner the required certificates of inspection or approval.  DB 
Entity shall also be responsible for arranging and obtaining and shall pay all costs in connection with 
any inspections, tests, or approvals required for Owner’s acceptance of materials or equipment to 
be incorporated in the Work or of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval 
prior to DB Entity’s purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.  
  

B. DB Entity shall give Owner reasonable notice of the planned schedule for all required inspections, 
tests, or approvals.  
  

C. If any Construction (or the construction work of others) that is required to be inspected, tested, or 
approved is covered by DB Entity without written concurrence of Owner, then DB Entity shall, if 
requested by Owner, uncover such Construction for observation. 
 

D. Uncovering Construction as provided in Paragraph 12.04 shall be at DB Entity’s expense unless DB 
Entity has given Owner timely notice of DB Entity’s intention to cover the same and Owner has not 
acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.  
  

12.04. Uncovering Construction  
  

A. If any Construction is covered contrary to the written request of Owner, it must, if requested by 
Owner, be uncovered for Owner’s observation, and recovered at DB Entity’s expense.  
  

B. If Owner considers it necessary or advisable that covered Construction be observed by Owner or 
inspected or tested by others, DB Entity, at Owner’s request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise 
make available for observation, inspection or testing as Owner may require, that portion of the 
Construction in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material and equipment.  If it is found that 
such Construction is defective, DB Entity shall pay all costs and damages caused by or resulting from 
such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory replacement or 
reconstruction, (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys 
and other professionals, all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs, and all costs of 
repair or  replacement of work of others); and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease 
in the Contract Price.  If, however, such Construction is not found to be defective, DB Entity shall be 
allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones), or 
both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, 
replacement and reconstruction.  If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent 
thereof, DB Entity may make a claim therefor as provided in Article 9.  
 

82



 

 
Page 43 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 
 

12.05. Owner May Stop Construction  
  

A. If Construction is defective, or DB Entity fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable 
materials or equipment, or fails to furnish or perform Construction in such a way that the 
completed Construction will conform to the Contract Documents, Owner may order DB Entity to 
stop Construction or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; 
however, this right of Owner to stop Construction will not give rise to any duty on the part of 
Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of DB Entity or any other party.  
  

12.06. Correction or Removal of Defective Work  
  

A. Subject to section 12.07 below, Owner will have authority to disapprove or reject defective Work 
and will have authority to require special inspection or testing of the Work if and to the extent the 
special inspection or testing is required by and listed in the Contract Documents whether or not the 
Work is fabricated, installed or completed.  If required by Owner, DB Entity shall promptly, as 
directed, either correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if 
the Work has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the Site and replace it with non‐defective 
Work.  DB Entity shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs of such correction or 
removal (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other 
professionals and all court, arbitration, or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating 
to such correction or removal. 

 
12.07. Correction Period  
  

A. If within one year after the date of Final Acceptance or such longer period of time as may be 
prescribed by Laws or Regulations or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by 
the Contract Documents or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found 
to be defective, DB Entity shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner’s 
written instructions, (i) correct such defective Work, or, if it has been rejected by Owner, remove it 
from the Site and replace it with Work that is not defective, and (ii) satisfactorily correct or remove 
and replace any damage to other Work or the work of others resulting therefrom.  If DB Entity does 
not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay would 
cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work corrected or the rejected 
Work removed and replaced, and all costs, losses, and damages caused by or resulting from such 
removal and replacement (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys and other professionals, all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs, and all 
costs of repair or replacement of work of others) will be paid by DB Entity.  

  
B. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service 

before Final Acceptance, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if 
so specifically provided in the Contract Documents.  

  
C. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected, 

removed or replaced under this Paragraph 12.07, the correction period hereunder with respect to 
such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal 
and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.  

83



 

 
Page 44 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

 
 

12.08. Acceptance of Defective Work  
  

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner prefers to 
accept it, Owner may do so.  DB Entity shall pay all costs, losses, and damages (including but not 
limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all 
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) attributable to Owner’s evaluation of and 
determination to accept such defective Work as long as those costs do not exceed the cost to repair 
the work.  If any such acceptance occurs prior to Final Acceptance, a Change Order will be issued 
incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents, and Owner shall be entitled to an 
appropriate decrease in the Contract Price reflecting the diminished value of the Work so accepted.  
If the acceptance occurs after Final Acceptance, an appropriate amount will be paid by DB Entity to 
Owner.  

  
12.09. Owner May Correct Defective Work  
  

A. If DB Entity fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Owner to correct defective 
Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by Owner in accordance with Paragraphs 
12.06.A or 12.07.A, or if DB Entity fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, or if DB Entity fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, 
Owner may, after seven days’ written notice to DB Entity, correct and remedy any such deficiency. 
 

B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 12.09 Owner shall proceed 
expeditiously.   In connection with such corrective and remedial action, Owner may exclude DB 
Entity from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work, and suspend DB Entity’s 
services related thereto and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site 
or for which Owner has paid DB Entity but which are stored elsewhere. DB Entity shall allow Owner, 
Owner’s Advisor, Owner’s representatives, agents, employees, and other contractors access to the 
Site to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph.  

  
C. All costs, losses, and damages (included but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, 

attorneys and other professionals, all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs and  all  
costs  of  repair  or  replacement  of  work  of  others)  incurred  or  sustained  by  Owner  in 
exercising such rights and remedies under this Paragraph 12.09 will be charged against DB Entity 
and  a  Change  Order  will  be  issued  incorporating  the    necessary  revisions  in  the  Contract 
Documents, and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price.  

  
D. DB Entity shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Time(s) (or Milestones) because of any 

delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner’s rights and 
remedies under this Paragraph 12.09.  

  
 

ARTICLE  13 – PAYMENTS TO DB ENTITY AND COMPLETION  
  
13.01. Progress Payment Schedule  

84



 

 
Page 45 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
A. A schedule prepared by DB Entity and acceptable to Owner indicating that portion of the Contract 

Price to be paid for each major component of the Work.  
    
13.02. Application for Progress Payment  
  

A. DB Entity shall submit to Owner, on or about the last day of each month, an Application for 
Payment filled out and signed by DB Entity covering the Work completed as of the date indicated 
on the Application and accompanied by supporting documentation as required by the Contract 
Documents.  

  
B. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but 

delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application 
for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice or other documentation warranting 
that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens and evidence that 
the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other 
arrangements to protect Owner’s interest therein, all of which will be satisfactory to Owner.  

  
C. Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of DB 

Entity stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been 
applied on account to discharge DB Entity’s legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications 
for Payment.  

  
D. The amount of retention with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.  

  
13.03. Progress Payments  
  

A. Owner will, after receipt of each application for payment, either make payment or return the 
application to DB Entity, indicating in writing Owner’s reasons for refusing to make payment. In the 
latter case, DB Entity may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the application.  

  
B. Owner may refuse to make the whole or any part of any payment if, it would be incorrect to make 

such payment because of subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent 
inspections or tests, revise or revoke any such payment previously made, to such extent as may be 
necessary to protect Owner from loss because:  

  
1. The Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged, requiring correction or 

replacement;  
  

2. The Contract Price has been reduced by written amendment or change orders;  
  

3. Owner has been required to correct defective Work or complete Work in accordance with 
Article 12; or  
  

4. Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Article 15.  
  

5. DB Entity fails to comply with the SBE requirements as stated in the Contract;  
  

85



 

 
Page 46 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

6. DB Entity fails to submit the required insurance policy declaration page as stated in the 
Contract;  
  

7. DB Entity fails to comply with requirement to provide Owner with timely progress schedule 
updates in keeping with general requirements, and DB Entity fails to provide a progress 
schedule update within sixty (60) days of a request from Owner but Owner shall not withhold 
more than $15,000 per progress payment period and said sum shall be released once the 
schedule is provided.    

  
C. Reduction in Payment:  Owner may refuse to make the whole or any part of any such payment, or 

because of subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or tests, 
nullify any previous payment, to the extent that is reasonably necessary to protect Owner from loss 
because:  

  
1. Claims have been made against Owner that are caused by DB Entity’s performance or 

furnishing of the Work except in the case of claims based in whole or in part on action or 
inaction by Owner; or 
 

2. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where DB Entity has delivered a 
specific Bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens 
except for lien claims due that are the responsibility of the Owner;  
  

3. There are other items entitling Owner to a set off against the amount for which application is 
made specifically authorized by this Agreement; or  
  

4. Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraph 
14.02.A or if DB Entity is otherwise in breach.  

  
D. If Owner refuses to make payment of the full amount requested by DB Entity, Owner must give DB 

Entity immediate written notice stating the reasons for such action and promptly pay DB Entity any 
amount remaining after deduction of the amount withheld.   Owner shall promptly pay DB Entity 
the amount withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to when DB Entity remedies the reason for 
such action.  

  
13.04. DB Entity’s Warranty of Title  
  

A. DB Entity warrants and guarantees that title to all Construction, materials, and equipment covered 
by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to Owner no 
later than the time of payment free and clear of all Liens.  

  
13.05. Substantial Completion  
  

A. When DB Entity considers the Work ready for its intended use DB Entity shall notify Owner in 
writing that the Work is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by DB Entity as 
incomplete) and request that Owner issue a certificate of Substantial Completion.  Promptly 
thereafter, Owner and DB Entity shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of 
completion.  If Owner does not consider the Work substantially complete, Owner will notify DB 
Entity in writing giving the reasons therefor.  If Owner considers the Work substantially complete, 

86



 

 
Page 47 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

Owner will prepare and deliver to DB Entity a certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix 
the date of Substantial Completion.  There shall be attached to the certificate a list of items to be 
completed or corrected before Final Acceptance (“Punch List”).  Within five (5) working days after 
receipt of a proposed Punch List, Owner shall either (a) approve the Punch List or (b) request that 
certain amendments or modifications be made to the Punch List.   The Parties shall meet and 
negotiate in good faith and shall promptly agree on and execute an amended Punch List to be 
completed by the Design‐Builder before Final Completion is achieved.  At the time of delivery of the 
certificate of Substantial Completion Owner will deliver to DB Entity a written determination as to 
division of responsibilities pending Final Acceptance between Owner and DB Entity with respect to 
security, operation, safety, protection of Construction, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance and 
warranties and guarantees.  

  
B. Owner will have the right to exclude DB Entity from the Site after the date of Substantial 

Completion, but Owner will allow DB Entity reasonable access to complete or correct items on the 
list of items to be completed. 
 

13.06. Partial Utilization  
  

A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially 
completed part of the Construction which (i) has specifically been identified in the Contract 
Documents, or (ii) Owner and DB Entity agree constitute a separately functioning and usable part of 
the Construction that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant 
interference with DB Entity’s performance of the remainder of the Construction, subject to the 
following:  

  
1. Owner at any time may request DB Entity in writing to permit Owner to use or occupy any such 

part of the Construction which Owner believes to be ready for its intended use and 
substantially complete.  If DB Entity agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, 
DB Entity and Owner will follow the procedures of Paragraph 13.05 for that part of the 
Construction.  
  

2. DB Entity at any time may notify Owner in writing that DB Entity considers any such part of the 
Work ready for its intended use and substantially complete and request Owner to issue a 
certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.  
  

3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner and DB Entity shall make an 
inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Owner does not 
consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Owner will notify DB Entity in 
writing giving the reasons therefor.  If Owner considers that part of the Work to be 
substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 13.05 will apply with respect to certification 
of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect 
thereof and access thereto.  
  

4. No use or occupancy of part of the Construction will be accomplished prior to compliance with 
the requirements of Paragraph 5.10 regarding property insurance.  

  
 
 

87



 

 
Page 48 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

13.07. Final Inspection  
  

A. Upon written notice from DB Entity that the entire Work is complete, Owner will make a final 
inspection with DB Entity and will notify DB Entity in writing of all particulars in which this 
inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or defective.  DB Entity shall immediately take such 
measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.  

  
13.08. Final Acceptance  
  

A. The following conditions shall constitute the conditions for Final Acceptance:  
  

1. All permits required under applicable Laws and/or Regulations and the Contract Documents to 
be obtained by DB Entity which are necessary for the continued routine operation of the 
Project shall be in full force and effect and certified copies of all such permits shall have been 
delivered to Owner.  

  
B. When DB Entity determines that it has met the conditions for Final Acceptance, it shall furnish 

Owner with a certified statement (in a form acceptable to Owner) evidencing that Final Acceptance 
has been met.  If Owner is satisfied that the conditions for Final Acceptance set forth in Paragraph 
13.08.A above have been achieved, it will, within twenty‐one (21) days after receipt of DB Entity’s 
certification, give written notice to DB Entity that it agrees that Final Acceptance has been 
achieved. Otherwise, Owner will indicate to DB Entity in writing the reasons that it disagrees that 
Final Acceptance has been achieved, in which case DB Entity shall make the necessary corrections 
and resubmit the certification.  

  
13.09. Final Payment  
  

A. Application for Payment.  
  

1. After DB Entity has achieved Final Acceptance to the satisfaction of Owner and delivered in 
accordance with the Contract Documents all maintenance and operating instructions,  
schedules,  guarantees,  Bonds,  certificates  or  other evidence of insurance, certificates of 
inspection, record documents (as provided in Paragraph 6.12) and other documents, DB Entity 
may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments. [Note: 
discuss Bonds and other evidence of insurance] 

  
2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (unless previously delivered) by:   (i) all 

documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the evidence 
of insurance required by Paragraph 5.04.B.7; (ii) consent of the surety, if any, to final payment; 
and (iii) complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Liens 
arising out of or filed in connection with the Work.  

  
3. In lieu of such releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 13.09.A.2 and as approved by 

Owner, DB Entity may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit  of  DB  Entity  that:  (i) 
the  releases  and  receipts  include  all  labor, services, material and equipment for which a Lien 
could be filed, and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment bills and other indebtedness 
connected with the Work for which Owner might in any way be responsible, or which in any 
way might result in liens or other burdens on Owner’s property, have been paid, or otherwise 

88



 

 
Page 49 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

satisfied.  If any Design Subconsultant, Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release 
or receipt in full, DB Entity may furnish a Bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner to 
indemnify Owner against any Lien.  

  
B. Final Payment:  If Owner is satisfied that the Work has been completed and DB Entity’s other 

obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, Owner will, within ten days after 
receipt of the final Application for Payment, give written notice to DB Entity that it is ready to 
process final payment.  Otherwise, Owner will return the Application to DB Entity, indicating in 
writing the reasons for refusing to process final payment, in which case DB Entity shall make the 
necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.  

  
C. Payment Becomes Due:  Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the acceptable Application 

for Payment and accompanying documentation, in appropriate form and substance and with 
Owner’s notice of acceptability, the amount will become due and will be paid by Owner to DB 
Entity in compliance with the statutory requirements set forth in California Public Contract Code 
section 7107, and pursuant to Article 5 of the Agreement.  

  
  

ARTICLE  14 – SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION  
  
14.01. Owner May Suspend Work  
  

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of 
not more than 90 consecutive days by notice in writing to DB Entity which will fix the date on which 
Work will be resumed.  DB Entity shall resume the Work on the date so fixed.  DB Entity shall be 
allowed an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time(s), or both, 
directly attributable to any such suspension if DB Entity makes a Claim therefor as provided in 
Article 9.  

  
14.02. Owner May Terminate for Cause  
  

A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events justifies termination for cause:  
  

1. DB Entity’s persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents 
(including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or 
equipment or failure to adhere to the progress schedule established under Paragraph 2.04.A as 
adjusted from time to time pursuant to Paragraph 6.05).  
 

2. DB Entity’s disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction.  
 

3. DB Entity’s material breach  of provisions of the Contract Documents.   
 

4. Any act by DB Entity exposing Owner to liability to others for personal injury or property 
damage; or  
 

89



 

 
Page 50 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

5. DB Entity becomes insolvent; files for federal bankruptcy protection; is adjudged a bankrupt; 
makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or a receiver is appointed on account 
of DB Entity’s insolvency.  

  
B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 14.02.A occur, Owner may, after giving DB 

Entity (and the surety, if any) seven days’ written notice, terminate the services of DB Entity, take 
possession of any completed Drawings and Specifications prepared by or for DB Entity (subject to 
the indemnification provisions of Paragraph 3.05.A), exclude DB Entity from the Site, and take 
possession of the Work, incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or 
for which Owner has paid DB Entity but which are stored elsewhere, and finish the Work as Owner 
may deem expedient.  In such case DB Entity shall not be entitled to receive any further payment 
until the Work is finished.  If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all costs, losses and 
damages sustained by Owner arising out of or resulting from completing the Work (including but 
not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals and all 
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) such excess will be paid to DB Entity. If such 
costs, losses and damages exceed such unpaid balance, DB Entity shall pay the difference to Owner. 
Such costs, losses and damages incurred by Owner will be incorporated in a Change Order.   When 
exercising any rights or remedies under this paragraph Owner shall not be required to obtain the 
lowest price for the Work performed.  

  
C. Notwithstanding Paragraph 14.02.B, DB Entity’s services will not be terminated if DB Entity begins, 

within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate, to correct its failure to perform and 
proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of said notice.  

  
D. Where DB Entity’s services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any 

rights or remedies of Owner against DB Entity then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any 
retention or payment of moneys due DB Entity by Owner will not release DB Entity from liability.  

  
E. Notwithstanding the notice periods provided in this Paragraph 14.02, in the event of an emergency, 

Owner shall have the right to immediately, and without notice to DB Entity, take over and protect 
the Site by whatever means it deems appropriate.  Owner will endeavor to provide DB Entity notice 
of such action within 24 hours after its occurrence.  

  
F. In no event shall any delay in Completion arising prior to issuance of a notice of termination for 

cause through the time such condition or violation shall have ceased or been cured be excused. 
 
G. Upon termination, DB Entity shall provide Owner with all Work Product, whether or not such 

documents are final or draft documents.  
  
14.03. Owner May Terminate for Convenience  
  

A. Owner may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this Agreement and compensate DB 
Entity only for the Work and Services rendered to the date of termination and all reasonable costs 
incurred by DB Entity as a result of such termination (including in the termination of subcontracts, 
vendor agreements and in demobilization), which cannot be mitigated or eliminated through 
commercially reasonable efforts by DB Entity.  Written notice by Owner shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by DB Entity.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 
DB Entity or no later than three (3) Business Days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.  In 

90



 

 
Page 51 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

the event that Owner terminates this Agreement pursuant to this section, Owner shall compensate 
DB Entity for work completed to date.  

  
B. In any such termination for the convenience of Owner, DB Entity shall be paid for work completed 

in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to receipt of the notice of termination, and for 
termination settlement costs that in Owner’s sole discretion relate to commitments which had 
become firm prior to the termination. DB Entity shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated 
profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.  DB 
Entity shall justify its claims as requested by Owner with thorough, accurate records and data.  

  
14.04. DB Entity May Suspend or Terminate for Cause  
  

A. If Owner fails to pay undisputed amounts owed to DB Entity within forty‐five (45) days of the date 
such payment is due under the Agreement, DB Entity’s remedies shall be as follows:  

  
1. DB Entity is entitled to suspend the Work within five (5) days of delivering a written notice to 

Owner that DB Entity will suspend the Work as a result of Owner’s failure to pay undisputed 
amounts due.  If DB Entity does suspend the Work and claims  that  the  suspension  has  
affected  the  cost  or  time  of performance, it shall be entitled to proceed in accordance with 
the remedies set forth in Article 15.  
  

2. DB Entity is entitled to terminate this Agreement if a suspension for Owner’s nonpayment 
continues for more than ninety (90) days. The termination shall become effective if, after such 
90‐day period, Owner fails to cure the nonpayment within ten (10) days of its receipt of a 
notice from DB Entity that it intends to terminate the Agreement as a result of Owner’s failure 
to pay undisputed amounts due.   If DB Entity does terminate the Agreement, such termination 
shall be treated as if Owner had terminated the whole of the Work in accordance with 
Paragraph 14.03.A above. [Note: discuss trimming this timeline as maintaining lien rights 
requires filing the lien before this timeline expires] 

  
B. If DB Entity elects to suspend the Work as a result of Owner’s failure to act under the circumstances 

described in Section 14.04  of the Agreement, DB Entity shall provide Owner with ten (10) days 
advance written notice of its intent to suspend the Work.  If Owner has not taken action under 
Section 14.04 of the Agreement within such 10‐day period, and DB Entity does suspend the Work 
and claims that the suspension has affected the cost or time of performance, it shall be entitled to 
proceed in accordance with the remedies set forth in Article 15.  

  
C. Other than as specifically set forth in Paragraphs 14.04.A and 14.04.B above, DB Entity shall have no 

rights to suspend or terminate this Agreement for any reason, and shall be obligated to continue 
performing in a diligent manner and without delay.  

  
 

 ARTICLE  15 – CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
  
15.01. General  
  

91



 

 
Page 52 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

A. Claims and disputes under the Contract include disagreements, claims, counterclaims, matters in 
question, and differences of opinion between Owner and DB Entity, regarding the Work and 
modifications or changes to the Work. Disputes may involve interpretation of Contract Documents, 
acceptability of the Work, costs and/or time for performance.  

  
B. The procedures specified herein shall be the sole and exclusive procedures for the resolution of 

disputes between Owner and DB Entity arising out of or relating to this Contract.  The Parties will 
participate in good faith in the procedures specified in this Article 15. 

 
C. All applicable statutes of limitation and defenses based upon the passage of time shall be tolled 

while the procedures specified in this Article 15 are pending.  The Parties will take such action, if 
any, required to effectuate such tolling.  

  
D. In the event any dispute occurs under this Contract which cannot be readily resolved, it shall be 

referred to the appropriate executives of Owner and DB Entity for negotiation and resolution as 
described below.  

  
E. In the event of a dispute between the parties described in this Article, pending resolution of the 

dispute(s), DB Entity agrees to and shall continue the Work diligently to completion conditioned 
only on Owner’s payment of undisputed amounts.  If the dispute is not resolved, DB Entity agrees it 
will not stop, delay, or hinder progress of the Work, but shall continue the Work diligently to 
completion conditioned only on Owner’s payment of undisputed amounts except for non‐payment 
per Section 14.04.  

  
15.02. Notice  
  

A. Notice: Written notice stating the general nature of each claim, dispute, or other matter shall be 
delivered by the party making the claim to the other party, immediately, but in no event later than 
ten (10) days after the claimant becomes aware or should have been reasonably aware of the first 
occurrence giving rise to the Claim.  Notice of the amount or extent of the claim, dispute, or other 
matter with supporting data shall be delivered to the other party within thirty (30) days after the 
start of such event (unless additional time agreed upon to submit additional or more accurate data 
in support of such claim, dispute, or other matter.) A claim for an adjustment in Contract Price shall 
be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 11.01.  A claim for an adjustment in 
Contract Time(s) shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 11.02.  Each 
claim shall be accompanied by DB Entity’s written statement that the adjustment claimed is the 
entire adjustment to which DB Entity believes it is entitled as a result of said event.  In its claim DB 
Entity must provide justification for each line item of DB Entity’s claim including but not limited to 
specifying the section of the terms and conditions which provides an entitlement to the claim.  

  
B. Owner’s decision: Owner will render a formal decision in writing within sixty (60) days after receipt 

of the last submittal of DB Entity, if any.  Owner’s written decision on such claim, dispute, or other 
matter will be final and binding upon Owner and DB Entity unless an appeal from Owner’s decision 
is taken within the time limits and in accordance with the dispute resolution procedures set forth in 
this Article 15.  Owner may issue unilateral change orders as referenced in Paragraph 9.04.A.3.  

  
 
 

92



 

 
Page 53 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

15.03. Meet and Confer  
  

A. If the claimant disputes the Owner’s written response, or the Owner fails to respond within the 
time prescribed, the claimant may so notify the Owner, in writing, either within 15 days of receipt 
of the Owner’s response or within 15 days of the Owner’s failure to respond within the time 
prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of 
the issues in dispute. Upon a demand, the Owner shall schedule a meet and confer conference 
within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 

B. Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion remains in dispute, the 
claimant may file a claim as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. For 
purposes of those provisions, the running of the period of time within which a claim must be filed 
shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits his or her written claim pursuant to subdivision 
(a) until the time that claim is denied as a result of the meet and confer process, including any 
period of time utilized by the meet and confer process.  

  
15.04. Litigation  
  

A. The parties hereto agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this agreement 
shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the state and federal courts of competent jurisdiction 
located in the County of Mariposa, State of California or in the Federal District Court in the Eastern 
District of California. The aforementioned choice of venue is intended by the parties to be 
mandatory and not permissive in nature, thereby precluding the possibility of litigation between 
the parties with respect to or arising out of this agreement in any jurisdiction other than that 
specified in this paragraph.  DB Entity agrees to waive any objections to venue or jurisdiction in the 
County of Mariposa, State of California or in the Federal District Court in the Eastern District of 
California, for the purpose of litigating any dispute, controversy, or proceeding arising out of or 
related to this agreement.  

  
15.05. Auditing of Claims  
  

A. All claims filed by the parties shall be subject to audit at any time following the filing of the claim 
whether or not such claim is the subject of litigation.  The audit and review of records may be 
performed by the parties or its consultants.  Such right of audit shall include the records of DB 
Entity and its Design Sub‐consultants, Subcontractors and Suppliers.  The audit may begin on 10 
days’ notice to the other parties, Subcontractors, or Suppliers.  DB Entity, Design Sub‐consultants, 
Subcontractors, Suppliers and Owner shall be required to cooperate with the auditors and provide 
such information and records as are necessary for analysis of the claim.  

  
15.06. Costs for Dispute Resolution  
  

A. Each party will bear its own costs, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, incurred as a result 
of any claim process and dispute resolution process contained in this Article 15.   

  

 

93



 

 
Page 54 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

ARTICLE  16 – MISCELLANEOUS  
  
16.01. Giving Notice  
  

A. All notices, demands, or other communications to DB Entity under this Contract shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed received if sent by regular mail, FedEx or .  

  
B. All notices to Owner under this Contract shall be in writing.  Any notice required or permitted to be 

given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given, served, and received if (i) given in 
writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail, registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required,; (ii) sent by overnight delivery service, or 
facsimile transmission; or (iii) sent via , addressed as follows:  

  
District’s Representative:  
Black Water Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
602 Lyell Drive 
Modesto, CA 95356 
ATTN:  Jesse Franco, P.E.       
Email:   jesse@blackwater‐eng.com   
     
Design‐Builder  
Mountain Cascade, Inc. 
P.O. Box 5050 
Livermore, CA 95050 
Attn: Michael Duke Fuller     
     
   
 Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery thereof to the 
overnight delivery service.  Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days after deposit in the 
United States mail.  
  

C. All correspondence to Owner under this Contract shall reference Owner’s Contract Number.  
  
16.02. Computation of Times  
  

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract Documents by days, it will be computed to 
exclude the first and include the last day of such period.  If the last day of any such period falls on a 
Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such 
day will be omitted from the computation.  

  
16.03. Cumulative Remedies  
  

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies 
available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way 
as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise 
imposed or available by:  

94



 

 
Page 55 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
1. Laws or Regulations; or  

  
2. any special warranty or guarantee; or  

  
3. other provisions of the Contract Documents.  

  
B. The provisions of Paragraph 16.03.A will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract 

Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right and remedy to which they 
apply. 

 
16.04. Survival of Obligations  
  

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties and guarantees made in, required by or given in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the 
Contract Documents, will survive Final Acceptance, final payment, and termination or completion 
of the Contract.  

  
16.05. Controlling Law  
  

A. The laws of the state of California shall govern all aspects of this Contract.  
   
16.06. Duty to Reimburse  
  

A. Despite any provisions in the Contract Documents to the contrary, any amounts paid by Owner to 
DB Entity in excess of that to which it is entitled under the Contract Documents shall be reimbursed 
by DB Entity to Owner.    

  
B. DB Entity shall insert a provision containing all the requirements of this Paragraph 16.06 in all 

contracts between DB Entity and all DB‐Related Entities, altering the section only as necessary to 
identify properly the contracting parties.  

  
16.07. Notice to Other Agencies  
  

A. DB Entity shall notify all public and private entities or agencies in accordance with any and all 
ordinances, laws, agreements, licenses, and any other directions of construction activity, disruption 
of access or services. Owner shall not be responsible for any such notification.  

  
16.08. No Conflict with Laws Or Regulations  
  

A. The duties, obligations, criteria or procedure imposed by these General Conditions and the rights 
and remedies made available are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a 
limitation of any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or 
available by Laws or Regulations, except that in the event that a specific part or detailed 
requirement of a provision, criterion or procedure in these General Conditions and a specific part or 
detailed requirement of a provision, criterion or procedure imposed or available by Laws or 
Regulations are in conflict the specific part or detailed requirement of Laws and Regulations shall 
govern.  All other specific parts or detailed requirements in the provisions, criteria or procedures of 

95



 

 
Page 56 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

the applicable Laws or Regulations and these General Conditions not in conflict shall remain in full 
force and effect and be read with the controlling specific part or detailed requirement.  

  
16.09. Advertising  
  

A. No advertising shall be permitted upon any part of the Site or structures located on the Site. News 
or press releases pertaining to the services, work product(s), or performance of DB Entity under this 
Contract or the Project to which it relates shall be at the sole discretion of Owner.  

  
16.10. Non‐Solicitation  
  

A. DB Entity shall not directly or indirectly, or through any other person, agency, company or 
organization solicit employees of Owner to undertake employment with it, its parent company, or 
any subsidiary company or any affiliated company during the performance of this Contract and for 
a period of one (1) year after the recordation of the Notice of Completion (the “non‐solicitation 
period”). DB Entity acknowledges that actual or threatened violations of this Paragraph may give 
rise to irreparable injury to Owner, inadequately compensable in damages and, therefore, Owner 
may seek and obtain injunctive relief against the breach or threatened breach of DB Entity’s 
obligations and undertakings thereunder, in addition to any other legal remedies which may be 
available. This Paragraph 16.10 will survive the termination of this Agreement.  Violation of this 
Paragraph 16.10 during the non‐solicitation period will be deemed a material breach of contract.  

  
16.11. Records  
  

A. DB Entity shall maintain records and Owner shall have inspection and audit rights as follows:  
  

1. Maintenance of Records: DB Entity shall maintain all financial and non‐financial records and 
reports directly or indirectly related to the negotiation or performance of this Contract 
including supporting documentation for any service rates, expenses, research or reports. Such 
records shall be maintained and made available for inspection for a period of four years from 
completing performance and receiving final payment under this Contract.  
  

2. Examination of Records:  Owner or its designated agent shall have the right to examine in 
accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards all records directly or 
indirectly related to this Contract subject to any confidentiality agreement required by DB 
Entity.  Such examination may be made only within four (4) years from the date of final 
payment under this Contract and upon reasonable notice, time and place.  Records which 
relate to any litigation, appeals or settlements of claims arising from performance under this 
Contract shall be made available until a final disposition has been made of such litigation, 
appeals or claims. 

3. Applicability to Authorized Agents: In the event that any of the Work is delegated by DB Entity, 
DB Entity hereby agrees to include in any such Contract a provision requiring such counterparty 
to agree to the same requirement for records retention, inspection and audit rights as set forth 
in this Paragraph 16.11.  

  
4. Pursuant to California Statutes (???) any part of the Work which include building plans, 

blueprints, schematic drawings, and diagrams, including draft, preliminary, and final formats, 
which depict the internal layout and structural elements of a building, water treatment facility, 

96



 

 
Page 57 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

or other structure, must be maintained in a confidential manner and secured by DB Entity and 
parties associated with projects assigned under the Contract. Review by any unauthorized 
provider or outside/third party not performing work necessary for the assigned work order is 
prohibited.  This Paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.  
  

5. DB Entity and parties associated with projects assigned under the Contract shall complete, 
comply with and furnish to Owner a signed copy of a plan and specification request form, prior 
to obtaining such documents for bidding purposes.  

  
16.12. Standards of Compliance  
  

A. DB Entity hereby assures that no person shall be excluded on the grounds of race, color, creed, 
national origin, handicap, age, or sex, from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 
subjected to discrimination in any activity under this Contract.  DB Entity shall take all measures 
necessary to effectuate these assurances. 
 

B. DB Entity warrants that it has not employed or retained any person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for DB Entity, to solicit or secure this Contract.  Further, DB Entity 
warrants that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for DB Entity, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon 
or resulting from the awarding or making of this Contract.  For breach of this provision, Owner may 
terminate this Contract without liability and, at its discretion, deduct or otherwise recover the full 
amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration.  

  
16.13. DB Entity is an Independent Contractor  
  

A. DB Entity shall be considered an independent contractor and neither party shall be considered an 
employee or agent of the other party.  Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted to establish any 
relationship other than that of independent contractor between the parties and their respective 
employees, agents, subcontractors, or assigns during or after the performance on this Contract. 
Both parties are free to enter into contracts with other parties for similar services.  Owner shall not 
pay DB Entity staff any direct remuneration, expense reimbursement or compensation of any kind 
and DB Entity’s staff shall not be eligible for any benefit programs Owner offers to its employees.  
All benefits available to DB Entity’s staff shall be exclusively provided by DB Entity.  DB Entity shall 
provide all billing, collection, payroll services and tax withholding, among other things, for all DB 
Entity staff performing services under this Contract.  

  
16.14. No Right to Assign  
  

A. DB Entity shall not assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer its rights and obligations as set forth in 
this Contract without the prior written consent of Owner. Any attempted assignment in violation of 
this Paragraph shall be null and void. This section does not prohibit subcontracting portions of the 
Work. 

  
16.15. No Right to Pledge  
  

A. DB Entity shall not pledge Owner’s credit or make Owner a guarantor of payment or surety for any 
contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien, or any form of indebtedness.  

97



 

 
Page 58 of 58  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Raw Water Intake & Pump Station 

  
16.16. No Right to Employment Benefits  
  

A.  DB Entity expressly understands and agrees that DB Entity, its officers, agents, and employees, are 
not entitled to any employment benefits from Owner.  DB Entity expressly and voluntarily waives 
and agrees not to make any claim to participate in any of Owner’s employee benefits or benefit 
plans should DB Entity or any of its officers, agents, or employees be adjudicated for any reason to 
be an employee of Owner.  

  
16.17. Void or Unenforceable Provisions Entire Agreement  
  

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law 
or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and 
binding upon Owner and DB Entity, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to 
replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as 
close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.  

  
16.18. Nondiscrimination  
  

A. DB Entity and its contractors and subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow 
harassment against any employee or applicant for employee because of gender, sexual orientation, 
race, color, ancestry, religion, creed, national origin (including language use restriction), pregnancy, 
physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, age, marital status, and denial of medical 
and family care leave or pregnancy disability leave.  DB Entity and its contractors and 
subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act and 
associated regulations.  

  
16.19. Entire Agreement  
  

A. The Contract Documents states the entire understanding between the parties and supersedes any 
written or oral representations, statements, negotiations, or agreements to the contrary.  DB Entity 
recognizes that any representations, statements, or negotiations made by Owner staff or Owner 
consultants do not suffice to legally bind Owner in a contractual relationship unless they have been 
reduced to writing, approved, and signed by an authorized Owner representative.   This Contract 
shall, as of the Effective Date of the Agreement, bind the parties, their assigns, and successors in 
interest.  

  
END OF DOCUMENT 

98



 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 
 
 

PREVAILING WAGE CERTIFICATION 
  
I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract requirements  
regarding prevailing wages, benefits, on‐site audits with 48‐hours’ notice, payroll records, and apprentice  
and trainee employment requirements, for all Work on the above Project.  
  
  
Date:       _________________________________________   

Name of DB Entity:      _________________________________________ 

Signature:     _________________________________________ 

Print Name:     _________________________________________ 

Title:      _________________________________________ 

 
   

99



 

 
 

EXHIBIT 5 
 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 
  
Labor Code section 3700 in relevant part provides:  
  

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more of the  
following ways:  

  
a. By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more insurers duly authorized to 

write compensation insurance in this state.  
  

b. By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self‐insure, which 
may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to 
self‐insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees.  

  
I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be  
insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self‐insurance in accordance with the  
provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of  
the Work of this Agreement.  
  
  
Date:       _________________________________________   

Name of DB Entity:      _________________________________________ 

Signature:     _________________________________________ 

Print Name:     _________________________________________ 

Title:      _________________________________________ 

  
(In accordance with Article 5 ‐ commencing at section 1860, chapter 1, part 7, division 2 of the Labor 
Code, the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any 

Work under this Agreement.) 
   

100



 

 
 

EXHIBIT 6 
 
 

ASBESTOS & OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 
  
DB Entity hereby certifies that no Asbestos, or Asbestos‐Containing Materials, polychlorinated biphenyl  
(PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state Environmental Protection Agency or federal or state  
health agencies as a hazardous material, or any other material defined as being hazardous under federal  
or state laws, rules, or regulations “New Material Hazardous”, shall be furnished, installed, or  
incorporated in any way into the Project or in any tools, devices, clothing, or equipment used to affect  
any portion of DB Entity’s work on the Project for Owner.  
  
DB Entity further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the above‐mentioned  
standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities.  
  
Asbestos and/or asbestos‐containing material shall be defined as all items containing but not limited to  
chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and actinolite.  Any or all material containing  
greater than one‐tenth of one percent (.1%) asbestos shall be defined as asbestos‐containing material.  
  
Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous Material shall be  
settled by electron microscopy or other appropriate and recognized testing procedure, at Owner’s  
determination.  The costs of any such tests shall be paid by DB Entity if the material is found to be New  
Hazardous Material.  
  
All Work or materials found to be New Hazardous Material or Work or material installed with “New  
Hazardous Material” containing equipment will be immediately rejected and this Work will be removed  
at DB Entity’s expense at no additional cost to Owner.  
  
Design‐Builder has read and understood the document Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements,  
and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein.  
  
 

Date:       _________________________________________   

Name of DB Entity:      _________________________________________ 

Signature:     _________________________________________ 

Print Name:     _________________________________________ 

Title:      _________________________________________ 

 
   

101



 

 
 

EXHIBIT 7 
 
 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

  
  
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  
  
That_______________________________, as Principal, hereinafter called Contractor, and hereinafter 

called Contractor, and _______________________________________, as Surety of Sureties, hereinafter 

called “Surety,” are held firmly bound unto the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, as Obligee, 

hereinafter called “District,” in the sum of ___________________________________________________ 

($_________________), for which payment Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.  

  
WHEREAS, a certain written Agreement, dated _______________________,  2024, was made and  

executed by and between the District, as Owner, and the Contractor, which agreement is hereinafter called 
the Contract and is by reference made a part hereof.  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Contractor shall well 
and faithfully keep and perform all the covenants and agreements of Contract, and all alterations, 
modifications and extensions thereof, by the Contractor to be kept and performed, and shall fully complete 
all of the work described in the Contract, and all alterations, modifications and extensions thereof, and shall 
save and hold harmless the District from any and all loss of damage arising out of the failure of the 
Contractor and/or any and all subcontractors, to fulfill the Contract, and all alterations, modifications and 
extensions thereof, and shall fully reimburse and pay to the District all outlay and costs which the District 
may incur in making good any default of the Contractor and/or subcontractors, and in replacing and/or 
making good any defective material or faulty material or workmanship in the work of the Contractor and/or 
any and all subcontractors, which may be discovered within one (1) year subsequent to the completion and 
acceptance of the work provided for in the Contract, then the above obligation shall be void; otherwise, it 
shall be and remain in full force and effect.  
  

It is expressly covenanted and agreed by and between the Contractor and the Surety that the 
liability of the Contractor and the Surety shall at all times, and under all circumstances, be co‐ extensive, 
and that the Surety shall not be discharged, released or exonerated from liability under this bond, in whole 
or in part, by an alteration and/or modification of the Contract, whether notice thereof is given the Surety 
or not, and that the Surety shall be bound thereby, and also bound by any departure or deviation on the 
part of the District from the terms of the Contract.  
  

It is further expressly covenanted and agreed that in the event that more than one Surety is 
obligated hereunder, then, in that event, the co‐Sureties, bind themselves in the above stated sum “jointly 
and severally” as well as “severally” only for the purpose of allowing a joint action or actions against any or 
all of them, and for all other purposes each Surety binds itself, jointly and severally with the Contractors for 
the payment of such above stated sum only to the extent of the amount set forth opposite the Surety’s 

102



 

 
 

name in Appendix A to this bond, which Appendix A is attached hereto and by this reference made a part 
hereof. 
 

No change or alteration or modification of the Contract or of the work required thereunder shall 
release or exonerate any Surety or Sureties on the bond.  
  

This bond shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding that the Contract or any  
applicable law or statute of the State of California shall be held to be invalid.  
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contractor and the Surety or Sureties have hereunto signed their names 

this _______________ day of _________________, 2024.  

  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Contractor  

              
              
             ____________________________________________ 

Signature  
              
              
             ____________________________________________  

Surety  
              
              
             ____________________________________________ 

Attorney‐in‐Fact 
   

103



 

 
 

EXHIBIT 8  
  

 
LABOR AND MATERIALS PAYMENT BOND 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
  
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  
  

That __________________________________, as Principal, hereinafter called “Contractor,” and     

__________________________________, as Surety, hereinafter called “Surety,” are held and firmly bound 

unto the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District as Obligee, hereinafter called District, for the use and 

benefit of all persons and laborers of every class performing any work or labor upon or bestowing skill or 

other necessary services or furnishing materials, provisions, provender or other supplies to be used or 

consumed in, or furnishing equipment or power contributing to the work described in the agreement 

hereinafter mentioned, or in any alteration, modification or extension thereof, which persons and laborers 

are  hereinafter called Claimants, in the amount of   _____________________________________________  

($______________________) for which payment, well and truly to be made, Contractor and Surety bind 

themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by 

these presents.  

  
WHEREAS, a certain written agreement hereinafter called the “Contract,” dated 

______________________, 2024, was made and executed by and between the District, as Owner, and the  
Contractor, which agreement is hereinafter called the Contract and is by reference made a part hereof.  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Contractor shall 
promptly make payment to all Claimants for all labor and material used or reasonably required for use in 
the performance of the Contract, or any alteration, modification or extension thereof, whether the 
Contract, or any alteration, modification or extension thereof, is determined to be void, voidable or 
otherwise, or for any amount due under the Unemployment Insurance Act of the State of California with 
respect to such work or labor, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the 
California Franchise Tax Board from the wages of employees of the Contractor and/or any and all 
subcontractors pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 18806 with respect to such work 
or labor, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect.  
  

The Contractor and Surety hereby jointly and severally agree with the District that every Claimant  
who has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period of ninety (90) days after the date on which  
the last said Claimant’s work or labor was done or performed or materials were furnished by such  
Claimant, may sue on this bond for the use of such Claimant, prosecute the suit to final judgment for  
such sum or sums as may be justly due Claimant and have execution thereon.  The District shall not be  
liable for payment of any costs or expenses of any such suit. No suit or action shall be commenced  
hereunder by any Claimant: 
 

104



 

 
 

(a) Unless Claimant, other than a Claimant having a direct contract with the Contractor, shall have 
given written notice to any two of the following:  The Contractor, the District or the Surety, 
within ninety (90) days after such Claimant did or performed the last of the work or labor, or 
furnished the last of the materials for which said claim is made, stating with substantial 
accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were 
furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done or performed.  Such notice shall be served 
by mailing the same by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid in an envelope addressed 
to the Contractor, District, or Surety, at any place where its office is regularly maintained for 
the transaction of business, or by personal service.  

  
(b) After the expiration of seven months from the date of recordation of a Notice of Completion or 

Notice of Cessation if such notice is recorded pursuant to Civil Code Sections 3092 or 3093; or, 
if no such Notice of Completion or Notice of Cessation is recorded, after nine months from the 
date of completion or cessation of the work.  

  
The amount of this bond shall be reduced by and to the extent of any payment or payments made 

in good faith herewith, inclusive of the payment by Surety of mechanics’ liens which may be filed of record  
against said improvement, whether or not claims for the amount of such lien be presented under and 
against this bond.  
  

It is further expressly covenanted and agreed that in the event that more than one Surety is 
obligated hereunder, then, in that event, the co‐Sureties bind themselves in the above stated sum only to 
the extent of the amount set forth opposite each Surety’s name in Appendix A to this bond, which 
Appendix A is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.  
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contractor and the Surety or Sureties have hereunto signed their names 

this _______________ day of _________________, 2024.  

  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Contractor  

              
              
             ____________________________________________ 

Signature  
              
              
             ____________________________________________  

Surety  
              
              
             ____________________________________________ 

Attorney‐in‐Fact 
   

105



 

 
 

EXHIBIT 9  
  
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
  
As part of the consideration of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to purchase and maintain at its sole cost 
and expense during the life of the construction of the Project, and for five (5) years thereafter, insurance 
coverage against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or 
employees.  
  
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
  

A. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations with limits of no less than Five 
Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 
If a general aggregate limit applies, either the aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project 
or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

  
B. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any auto), 

with limits of no less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage.  

  
C. Workers’ Compensation: In accordance with the provisions of the California Labor Code, Contractor 

is required to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self‐insurance. 
Statutory Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability of at least $1,000,000 shall cover all 
Contractor’s staff while performing any work incidental to the performance or this agreement.  

  
Contractor is required to be insured for coverage for benefits under the United States Longshoremen’s 
and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act, and/or the Jones Act, for any work on, over, or near any 
navigable waters.  

  
D. Contractor’s Pollution Legal Liability:  Contractor’s Pollution Legal Liability with limits no less than 

One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence or claim, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
policy aggregate.  

  
E. Builder’s Risk: (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special Perils) coverage 

form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no coinsurance penalty 
provisions.  

  
F. Professional Liability:  Professional Liability (Errors and Omission) Insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant’s profession, with limit no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence or 
claim and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate to cover all services rendered by the 
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.  

  

106



 

 
 

If the Contractor maintains higher coverage limits than the amounts shown above, then the District 
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher coverage limits maintained by the Contractor. Any 
available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be 
available to the District.  
  
  
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
  
Each insurance policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following five (5) provisions:  
  

1) Additional Insured Status  
  

The Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, its officers, employees, and agents, shall be 
covered as additional insureds on the Commercial General Liability and the Automobile Liability 
policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or 
operations and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
Additional Insured coverage shall be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s 
insurance (at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Form CG 20 10 11 85).  A copy of the 
endorsement evidencing that the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District has been added as 
an additional insured on the policy, must be attached to the certificate of insurance. 

 
2) Subcontractors  

  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that the District is an additional insured on 
insurance required from subcontractors. For Commercial General Liability coverage subcontractors 
shall provide coverage with a format at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 20 38 04 
13.  

  
3) Notice of Cancellation  

  
A provision that coverage will not be cancelled or subject to reduction without written notice given 
to the District General Manager, addressed to P.O. 9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange, CA 95329.  

  
4) Primary Coverage  

  
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or 
self‐insurance maintained by the District shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.  

  
5) Waiver of Subrogation  

  
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer other than PL and 
Workers’ Compensation of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any 
loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 
subrogation. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 

107



 

 
 

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the District has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
  
The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the 
District for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.  

  
ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS  
  
All insurance coverage shall be placed with insurers that have a current rating from AM Best of no less than 
A: VII; and are admitted insurance companies in the State of California, if possible. All other insurers require 
prior approval of the District.  
  
COVERAGE LIMITS SPECIFICATIONS  
  
Approval of the insurance by District or acceptance of the certificate of insurance by District shall not 
relieve or decrease the extent to which the Contractor may be held responsible for payment of damages 
resulting from Contractor’s services or operation pursuant to this Agreement, nor shall it be deemed a 
waiver of District’s rights to insurance coverage hereunder.  
  
If, for any reason, Contractor fails to maintain insurance coverage which is required pursuant to this 
Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material breach of contract. District, at its sole option, may 
terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from the Contractor resulting from said breach. Alternately, 
District may purchase such required insurance coverage, and without further notice to Contractor, District 
may deduct from sums due to Contractor any premium costs advanced by District for such insurance.  
  
DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF‐INSURED RETENTIONS  
  
Any deductibles or self‐insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option 
of the District, either: the Contractor shall cause the insurer to reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self‐
insured retentions as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the 
Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District guaranteeing payment of losses 
and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.  
  
EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE  
  
Contractor must provide evidence that it has secured the required insurance coverage before execution of 
this agreement. A Certificate of Insurance supplied by the District or the appropriate ACORD and Insurance 
Services Office forms evidencing the above shall be completed by Contractor’s insurer or its agent and 
submitted to the District prior to execution of this Agreement by the District.  
  
Contractor shall furnish the District with original certificates and amendatory endorsements, or copies of 
the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements 
are to be received and approved by the District before work commences. However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide 
them.  The District reserves the right to require complete, of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time, if available. 

108



Page 1 of 2 pages

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
Resolution No. 2024-XX

Approved August 19, 2024

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AND AWARDING A DESIGN-BUILD 

CONTRACT WITH MOUNTAIN CASCADE INC. OF LIVERMORE, CA, IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $3,155,818 FOR THE RAW WATER INTAKE AND PUMP STATION PROJECT, 

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDERS UP TO 
THE CUMULATIVE AMOUNT OF $370,337, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT 

TO EXCEED $3,526,155, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER, OR HIS 
DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the District serves approximately 1,500 active connections and a population of 2,714. 
And the District has two sources of water supply: surface water from Lake McClure and four hard rock 
wells, and 
 
WHEREAS, the surface water system, Raw Water Intake Pump Station, consists of dual submersible 
pumps installed at Lake McClure within screened steel casings that have a combined capacity of 3,600 
gallons per minute (gpm); and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing Lake McClure pump station and intake infrastructure, constructed in the late 
1960s, have served the District for decades but have reached the end of their service life. The pump 
station building, and its electrical equipment urgently require replacement and upgrades mandated by 
codes. Additionally, the intake pipelines and pumps have either failed or deteriorated significantly; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Raw Water Intake and Pump Station project aims to enhance the current infrastructure 
and facilities to supply raw lake water reliably to the District's water treatment plant. The District 
obtained approval for a Department of Water Resources (DWR) Grant for the Project: DWR Agreement 
#4600014600 in the amount of $3.6 million. The grant comes from the small community drought relief 
program funded by the Budget Act of 2021 (STATS. 2021, CH 240 – 80; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District hired Black Water Engineering to provide engineering support and grant 
administration for the project, and  
 
WHEREAS, given the hydraulic complexity of the project involving submerged design and 
construction, as well as the timing constraints associated with the grant funding, the decision was made 
to pursue a Design-Build project delivery method to leverage specialized expertise and reduced project 
scheduling, and  
 
WHEREAS, Requests for Qualifications and Request for Proposals were issued to allow for qualified 
firms to participate, as well as for competitive cost proposals for the project, and  
 
WHEREAS, five Design-Build teams submitted statement of qualifications, and four Design-Build 

109



Page 2 of 2 pages

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
Resolution No. 2024-XX

Approved August 19, 2024

 

teams were selected to receive a Request for Proposals, and 
 
WHEREAS, two proposals were received by the District, and Mountain Cascade Inc.-Sandis 
Engineering was selected as the most qualified Design Build Entity, and  
 
WHEREAS, the original project scope included the replacement of both intake pipelines and pumps, 
and electrical upgrades, but unfortunately, the cost proposals received for the identified scope of work 
were substantially higher than the grant funding amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Black Water Engineering and District staff notified DWR of the cost proposals received 
and requested additional funding.  DWR recommended the project scope be reduced to meet critical 
improvements and to meet the grant funding that was approved. Black Water negotiated with 
Mountain Cascade on a reduced project scope and cost, but the proposed cost was still higher than the 
grant amount, and  
 
WHEREAS, an additional funding request was submitted to DWR in the amount of $600,000 and was 
approved.  DWR also extended the project deadline to June 30, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the condensed scope of the proposed project includes the engineering, design and 
construction necessary for the replacement of one intake pipeline and one submersible turbine pump 
for the Raw Water Intake & Pump Station to meet the District's capacity requirements, incorporating 
appropriate valve control and surge protections. The project will upgrade the pump station building, 
providing a modern electrical room with appropriate environmental controls and upgraded electrical 
equipment.  
 
WHEREAS, the cost proposal received from Mountain Cascade Inc. for the revised scope of work for 
the project is $3,155,818; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE 
DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY: 
 

1 .  Approve and award a Design-Build Contract to Mountain Cascade, Inc. of Livermore, CA, in 
the amount of $3,155,818 for the Raw Water Intake and Pump Station Project, and authorizing 
the General Manager, or his designee, to execute the Contract and approve Change Orders up 
to the cumulative amount of $370,337, for a total Contract amount not to exceed $3,526,155, 
and  

2. Authorize and direct the General Manager to prepare the necessary contract documents, 
procure incidental materials testing for the project, and execute incidental 
agreements or contracts to complete the project. 

 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake 
Don Pedro Community Services District on August 19, 2024, by the following vote: 

110



Page 3 of 2 pages

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
Resolution No. 2024-XX

Approved August 19, 2024

 

 
AYES:      (0)   
NAYS:     (0)  
ABSENT:  (0)  
ABSTAIN: (0) 
         

__________________________________________ 
Danny Johnson, Board President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary  
 
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
I, Syndie Marchesiello, as the duly appointed Secretary of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services 
District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted on the 19th day 
of August at the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
______________________________ 
 
Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

111



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dave Savidge  

Date:   August 16th, 2024 

 

Subject:  Update / InformaƟon Only – “Pedro Fire” 

As you know, a fire broke out in the community on July 30th, spreading from Arbolada Road to BarreƩ 

Cove and then to Hunters Valley. This caused a power outage at the Intake Pumping StaƟon, Treatment 

Plant, Admin Office, and several other sites within the distribuƟon system. Fortunately, our operaƟons 

staff had filled all the tanks that morning, allowing us to supply water throughout the fire. By 9:45 pm, 

power was restored to all sites except the Intake Raw Water Pump StaƟon. By 6:30 am on Wednesday, 

July 31st, the raw water tank level had dropped to about 14 feet, with 11 feet being the level at which 

operators typically start refilling. We esƟmated that we had about 8‐12 hours of water leŌ for the 

community. 

Office staff created flyers urging residents to conserve water during the fire and posted them at the 

Market and Dollar General Store. We also posted the noƟficaƟon on the Don Pedro Talk Facebook page 

and informed our answering service. Phone calls were made to areas around the Central Tank, which 

required the most conservaƟon efforts due to tank levels. ConservaƟon was necessary because we were 

not pumping at Intake to fill the treatment plant and surrounding tanks, and firefighters were drawing 

water from the hydrants to combat the fire. 

PG&E iniƟally stated that they had no esƟmate for when power could be restored, so we took acƟon by 

arranging to rent a generator and finding an electrician to connect it to the soŌ start at Intake. AŌer 

discussing the details with HOWK Well & Equipment, HOLT of California, and Barry Electric, we secured a 

generator and electrician. Meanwhile, we conƟnued to press PG&E to restore power at Intake to ensure 

we had enough water for the fire hydrants and customer use. 

At approximately 11:53 am, PG&E informed us that power was restored, and we could turn on our 

pumps. Jose Santana acƟvated the pumps, and we canceled the generator and electrician. 

As a result, there was no water outage, and we began refilling the tanks. Everyone at the District was 

commiƩed to ensuring our customers and firefighters had access to water. Our aŌer‐hours personnel 

worked through the night, spot‐checking tanks and responding to any firefighter requests. 

 

Lessons Learned: 

 The Treatment Plant and Intake are on two separate grids. If Intake is shut down, the Treatment 

Plant will sƟll have power. 

112



 Generators are urgently needed at both sites. 

 The Arbolada Road HydropneumaƟcs tank is insufficient for fire flows. 

 A noƟficaƟon system is needed to disseminate informaƟon to our customers. 

 We need to join WARN. The WARN agreement, officially called the 2001 Omnibus Mutual 

Assistance Agreement of California, enables water and wastewater agencies in California to 

voluntarily share resources during an emergency. The agreement is consistent with California’s 

Standard Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the California Emergency Services Act. 

 Approximately 200,000 gallons of water were used from our fire hydrants. 

 The Fire Hydrant program must be ongoing. 

 HOWK Well pumps and Holt of California Caterpillar had the necessary equipment to maintain 

electricity. Barry Electric was ready to provide electrical hookups from the generator and offer 

informaƟon on needed equipment. 

113


	Item 5a, 2Raw Water Intake & Pump Station_081924.pdf
	Raw Water Intake & Pump Station
	Project Update
	Original Project Scope 
	Project Delivery
	Solicitation Results
	Funding
	Condensed Project Scope
	Condensed Project
	Recommendation
	Thank you




